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REPORT OF THE MANAGER

TO THE UNITHOLDERS
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

Fund Performance

The BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition ETF (the
“Sub-Fund”) is an index-tracking exchange traded fund
which seeks to provide investment performance (before
fees and expenses) that tracks the performance of the
S&P BOCHK China Hong Kong Greater Bay Area Net Zero
2050 Climate Transition Index (“Underlying Index”). As
of 31 December 2024, the net asset value (“NAV”) per
unit of the Sub-Fund was HKD9.1446 and RMB8.6269 for
the HKD and RMB counter, with a total of 5,000,000 units
outstanding and total assets under management ("AUM")
of HKD45,722,773.

The BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition ETF
primarily adopts a full replication strategy through
investing all or substantially all in constituent securities
of the Underlying Index (“Index Securities”), broadly
in proportion to the respective weightings of the Index
Securities!.

The Manager may also use a representative sampling
strategy where it is not possible to acquire certain
securities which are Index Securities due to restrictions
or limited availability where the Manager considers
appropriate in its absolute discretion. Please refer to the
information of the Sub-Fund published on the Manager’s
website? (www.boci-pru.com.hk) for details.

HEE&EmE

. HREBAEERIREEETF
(BEEPEEFBETFRIINTES)
BuEEA

EEXRR

HRFEBNEERIGELETF((FES]) 2 —HER
BERGMEEES - HNIIRHRMEEHEHESEP
BEEBNERFZT2050 7 REREH ([HEER])
REMBRERR (IKREARAIZA) - #HE-T
“WFETZAM—RB TEHEESESEBENEEFES
9.1446%8 7w (BtiEe) RARKS.6269 T (AREE
BE) DE{TMESEM4:1/455,000,0001F - &8
BEMRK ([AUM)) 851 745,722,773 87T

HIRFERNERRIGEANETFEZRA2EEER
B - WER 2R HAK L2 A AR R MK D & 5
(THE8EZ]) - MRELHIEEHFESFEENLER
BAAR* -

FENEIAR IS E AT A EE R 8 ERBIERER
BHENETES  EESKEEYH I%EZJF%L?.?EI’JFE
AT B EERAIRARKEMERE - F5F2

EESEIB48uE2 (www.boci-pru.com.hk) FTsiiFEe

1 The Manager may invest other securities that are not included in the Underlying Index under the following circumstances:
(i) substitutes may be used as replacement if the original constituents are not tradeable for whatever reason, including
where trading in a constituent security has been suspended or if such holding results from a corporate action of a constituent
security,; (ii) in anticipation or response to a rebalance of the Underlying Index, new constituents in the updated index portfolio
or existing constituents in the previous index portfolio may be held by the Sub-Fund during short transitional periods before or

after each index rebalancing.

FETIERT » EBAETHE A RERREAAIER AR M55 - (1) EREHLS

EBFAERRATARS  BFEADESEERS  EFEHE

AL BZHIRFITTEISIZ - AR MESERER (iR BELIRERETER  FRSEGNEHERG L5 E RN - 7

FFBAS B IE A & IR 75525 B0 BRI 15 BAA & BB B 7785 o
2 The Manager’s website has not been reviewed by the SFC.
AT W AASEE BT -



REPORT OF THE MANAGER (continued)

TO THE UNITHOLDERS
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) (continued)

Fund Performance (continued)

A summary of the performance of the BOCHK Greater
Bay Area Climate Transition ETF is shown below.

ESEERE (H)

. HREBAREERIREEETF
(BEETEEFBETFRIINTES)
BEEA(E)

EERA (8
RIRFBANERRIREETFRAMELT -

Since Inception

Total Return® in HKD 2024 20230 (Annualized)®©
B LATR

2HEE (AETAE) —EomE ZE-ZF0 (FXfp)@©
S&P BOCHK China Hong Kong Greater

Bay Area Net Zero 2050 Climate

Transition Index (HKD)®) 12.88% -18.06% -4.33%
BERREFTFEEENLREFT2050

RIEEE RS (BT)®
BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate

Transition ETF NAV-to-NAV© 11.98% -18.34% -4.95%
RREANERRIFERETFEERE

HEEFEO
BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate

Transition ETF Market-to-Market(@ 12.61% -18.70% -4.89%

PREBAERRIZRELETFMELHME®

as of 31 December 2024 (last dealing date of December, 2024)

Past performance figures shown are not indicative of the future
performance of the Sub-Fund.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(@)

(e)

)

Total returns represent the rate that an investor would have
earned (or lost) on an investment, assuming reinvestment of
all dividends and distributions.

The index performance is calculated in total return with
dividend reinvested, net of withholding tax. An investor cannot
invest directly in an index and the index performance returns
do not reflect management fees, transaction costs or other
expenses, which would reduce performance returns of the Sub-
Fund.

Units in the Sub-Fund are issued and redeemed at NAV. The
Sub-Fund performance is calculated on NAV-to-NAV basis with
gross distribution reinvested.

Market returns are calculated using historical market closing
prices in HKD counter, and do not represent the returns you
would receive if you traded units at other times.

This is the annualized return since the Sub-Fund inception. The
Sub-Fund inception date is 29 March 2023.

This is the return in 2023 since the Sub-Fund inception. The
Sub-Fund inception date is 29 March 2023.

Sources: BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Ltd. and S&P Dow
Jones Indices LLC.
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REPORT OF THE MANAGER (continued)

TO THE UNITHOLDERS
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) (continued)

Fund Activities

On 25 April 2024, the Manager informed the investors
that the audited annual financial report of the Sub-Fund
as of 31 December 2023 was available for download.

On 29 April 2024, the Manager announced that the
Key Facts Statement (the “KFS”) of the Sub-Fund was
updated.

On 28 August 2024, the Manager announced that the
unaudited interim financial report of the Sub-Funds as
of 28 June 2024 (“Interim Financial Report 2024") was
available for download.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“"SEHK")
has announced that, from 23 September 2024, on
any days (from Monday to Friday except a Hong Kong
public holiday) on which severe weather conditions
persist (i.e. Typhoon Signal No. 8 or above is hoisted,
or Black Rainstorm Warning is issued by the Hong Kong
Observatory, or a situation of “Extreme Conditions” is
announced by the Hong Kong SAR Government), trading,
clearing and settlement services and operations will
continue in both the securities and derivatives markets
in Hong Kong ("SWT Days"”) and the SEHK will maintain
normal operations to the furthest extent possible (the
“SWT Arrangements”). In view of the implementation of
the SWT Arrangements, the Manager announced on 17
September 2024, unless the Manager and the Trustee
of the Sub-Fund otherwise determine, the Sub-Fund will
generally be traded on the SEHK on SWT Days if the
SEHK maintains normal operations.

On 25 October 2024, the Manager announced a change in
the composition of the board of directors of the Manager
with immediate effect.

On 30 December 2024, the Manager announced that the
KFS of the Sub-Fund has been updated so as to disclose
the updated information relating to the ongoing charges
of the Sub-Fund. Other minor amendment was made to
the KFS.

Please refer to the relevant announcements published
on the Manager’'s website? (www.boci-pru.com.hk) for
details.

Index Activities

The S&P BOCHK China Hong Kong Greater Bay Area
Net Zero 2050 Climate Transition Index underwent four
regular index reviews in 2024.
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. HREBAEERIREEETF
(BEEPEEFBETFRIINTES)
BEEA(E)

BEEEH

RICZZNFOATHR  ESKLBBAKREE - F
HeBZE T =F+-_AM—RBIOKEXFEN
BIERHTEH -

R-Z-NFEOAT AR ReKLEEH  FEEW
EmBRREC R -

ROZZ-NENATNR E2KBEM - FESHE
E-TEFANATNB EREEZD R ERS
(I ZZ_MFEFBPBRSE ) ATHTE -

BERBMERGAERAR ([MXMDEAH B -F
“MFEAAT=AE  RMEAEF(EH—ZEHh0
FEARBERIN) - B RRBLRREIER (B
BEBRNBBE/ /R LREAGT  BELEER
WES XBBFRITRERAEMNERS & HE
R BENBFLITEERTENRS - BERX
Wik S B EETT ([RAERRRHA ) - M
R EAEERFEFEE((BERARZLH]) -
ENBLERRAR LB EeKBER_FT -0
FLATEREM  BIFFESNHESKERETA
SIIHE - BBMRAERFETEE  FES RN
BHRRAR 5 BEMRFTETRS

RZZZMFE+ATHA  E2QEEMh  EeKE
MEFSREEHEE - WRBRFAERR -

R-ZE-_NF+-AMB  BEEEESH TEESH
EREIZECEEY  UBREEBE TESEEHH
THRFER - EREREZEIEED EMERIEET -

BB RS EEBIE2(www. boci-pru.com.hk)
PREHEAE °

EBED
R-ZZE_MF  BERRBFETEFENERFT
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REPORT OF THE TRUSTEE FEARE

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF H: PREBAXEERREEETF
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF (BEETEEFBETFRIINTES)
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) ZEMEFEEA

We hereby confirm that, in our opinion, the Manager of HMZLER  BMRE BEZZT-_HF+=A
BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition ETF (the H—BLEFE  FREBNEREREEMETF([FXE
“Sub-Fund”) has, in all material respects, managed the D 7EeKBAXEEZEREFHE  SREBHA
Sub-Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Trust R =F= AT AR ZERERE) (ETRHERT)
Deed dated 10 March 2023, as amended from time to FEERFES ©

time, for the year ended 31 December 2024.

For and on behalf of K&
BOCI-Prudential Trustee Limited IR B BRI ABR AR
25 April 2025 —E-RFNATHEH



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BOCHK
Greater Bay Area Climate Transition ETF (a sub-fund of
BOCHK ETF Series (the “Trust”) and referred to as the
“Sub-Fund”) set out on pages 15 to 56, which comprise
the statements of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statements of changes in
net assets attributable to unitholders and the statements
of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024,
and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial disposition of the Sub-Fund as
at 31 December 2024 and of their financial transactions
and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024 in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Sub-Fund in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BB ET RS

B} PREBNBERIZERETF
(ERHREBETF RINFES)
ZBUFEA

MBRERNRBERE
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(BB BREEANDEEMT SRR T FEER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
(continued)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation
to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying financial statements.

B ZBERE ()

B APREBNBERIZERETF
(ERHREBETF RINFES)
ZEBUBEA (H)

PB|MROZEIRE (F)

RARESEE

RRET FEERBERMANEXHE - RAHAHY
BRENETRAEZNER - GLEHSERMSH
MHHRREBETETLREERNES TREE - &
MrefELERERERER - RMY TEE—%
TR PR EHNFREALRE R -

BAICKETT NG [ XA 5 BT R A
METIMOMEANEL - BREEELERETSER
BT - RN - HPNET TERRBRATRE
HEHE B S IR B AR BUR R R MR EAHZ
FFeo RAATEFEFNAER  BREY T RRERE
AAEEARTHREF  SPBHRREBERBERTIEL
TR T ERE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF

BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
(continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

B ZBERE ()

B APREBNBERIZERETF
(ERHREBETF RINFES)
ZEBUBEA (H)

MBRERNRBEE (8)

MRgETEE (H)

Key audit matter
BREEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
AREASEHEEFT P 2 NMAERW

B RV EE 1R 25 5k B 55 B 19 5 R R 1 1

Existence and valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2024, the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss were valued at
HK$45,333,662, which represented 99.65% of
the net asset value of the Sub-Fund.
RZZEZNF+ZAM—AB RRAFEEBERIIRY S
BEMEMER45,333,6628 L EFESEEFEN
99.65% -

The financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss were listed shares traded in the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and Hong Kong Stock
Exchange comprising 157 constituent securities
of S&P BOCHK China Hong Kong Greater Bay
Area Net Zero 2050 Climate Transition Index.

BRATEERBERIRNMBEERERINNZEFR S MM
EREBARGMEENLTRE  BEFEFREEHEH
ERERNERFZ2050RIFEEIEHH157ERMHR ©

We focused on this area because the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
represented the principal element of the
financial statements.

B2 PRABTILEE - RERKRATFEEBERIIKRS
IS EEEMBHRERNEZAKES °

Disclosures in respect of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are set out in
the summary of accounting policies, notes 5 and
12 to the financial statements.
FRRATEZBERIIRMBEENRESNSTBE
BE - BBHRKRMEs RMEL12 -

The procedures we performed to address the
key audit matter included:

BPEYBEREAFEANITOREFEE

° Obtained independent confirmations from
the custodians of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss held at 31
December 2024 and agreed the quantities
held to the Sub-Fund’s accounting records.
BER-_Z_MF+_AM—ARBRATEERIE
=HIEFBEENTEABLERRBEE SR8
HFASHHER -

° Obtained an understanding of the valuation
process of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.
THRATEEBBERIIRMEEENGERE -

o Tested the valuation of the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss that were
quoted in active markets by independently
agreeing the valuation of financial assets to
third-party sources at 31 December 2024.
RARE=ARBRBUEEVHEEEN T _MNF+
ZAM—BREE - AENERTSERENIRATE
FRBERIIREENGE -

° Assessed the adequacy of disclosures
relating to financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in the financial
statements.

LM REAT AR AT EEBRIBRIIIRNIMBEE

ERTRERE -




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
(continued)

Other Information included in the Annual Report

The Manager and the Trustee are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee for
the Financial Statements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-Fund are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as
the Manager and the Trustee determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and
the Trustee of the Sub-Fund are responsible for assessing
the Sub-Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Manager and the Trustee either intend to liquidate
the Sub-Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
(continued)

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee for
the Financial Statements (continued)

In addition, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-
Fund are required to ensure that the financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the
relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed dated
10 March 2023 ("Trust Deed”), as amended from time to
time, and the relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix
E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds (the “SFC
Code”) issued by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission.

The Manager and the Trustee are responsible for
overseeing the Sub-Fund’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
the financial statements. In addition, we are required to
assess whether the financial statements of the Sub-Fund
have been properly prepared, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of
the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions of
Appendix E of the SFC Code.

11

B ZBERE ()

B APREBNBERIZERETF
(ERHREBETF RINFES)
ZEBUBEA (H)

PB|MROZEIRE (F)

ESRBERIAARMBRRAAENES (F)

O FEESNESKE MR FEAREBRUBEREK
TRERHS AT _=F=A T BMAI L Z2EERL
(MEFERH ) (BIARHERT) MR R B R R EEE
FEREERERLZ BRI ENELEAREEES
STRI(TBEE <RI MERERTDI R Z AR EER R @
BibiRE -

HeKERETEARARERE FESNMBEREBIE -

BBEIR BT M ERRABNELE

HPNEE  BUHPBRRBERES MFHEANERGE
SRR ME R B AR REUARG S IRRE - WHEM
BREMEROZBEIRS - ﬁ1Fﬁ1§ﬁ’1\ﬁf“1ﬂT*ﬁ
A (ER—EZE) (EHRIRE » FRULIASH - AIRE
Hipz - T e F¢t$#&iﬁ“}m/\ﬁﬁ£ﬂﬁ@}\t
B FSOREERRE

BEFRERRKFORE - ETERIELB(EBET
/EE‘J%E??E’J%J ER—EAHERBR TR 2R %

A ER BRI AT A B FRARF Sk BERR S - IR AR TAH
EE?@X%@E%&XTﬁ%%%ﬁﬂ‘%i&?‘%@iﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%
WRAELEERTE - BB R0 E8 SRR I °] AR 1E
BX o pthh RABEFEFESNPBRRETEX
FERBEERRE %y@i’JZWFﬁT&%MX&(@i‘%Qﬁ
A)MISKERRFIAA 2 BRI E R AR EL



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
(continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Sub-Fund’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Manager and
the Trustee.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager’s
and the Trustee’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Sub-Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Sub-Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
(continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Manager and the Trustee with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Manager and
the Trustee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES) (continued)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
(continued)

Report on Matters under the Relevant Disclosure
Provisions of the Trust Deed and the Relevant
Disclosure Provisions of Appendix E of the SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been
properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed
and the relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix E of
the SFC Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Au Chi Pang Ivan.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 April 2025

B ZBERE ()

B APREBNBERIZERETF
(ERHREBETF RINFES)
ZEBUBEA (H)

PB|MROZEIRE (F)

REEZVNEABENEGRIR (BESTR) MEREN
HEEERIRESENRE

BMRR - MBEBRESERTHCRRBETRNN
MR R R (R E g ST M SXERTHIRR 2 AR R
BRI Z DmEL -

o A AZ AR S AT TE B 5% AZAuU Chi Pang
Ivanit4 -

s st
B

—E-RAFEATHRHA

14



Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND BERkEMEZEWER
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HE_Z-_NF+_AM—BLLFE

For the

period from

29 March

For the 2023 (date of

year ended inception) to
31 December 31 December

2024 2023
—E=-=
=AtthAH
(BB &
BE-ZT-OF BE-B-=
+=A#M—H +=AHM—H
LFE WHHARS
NOTES HKD HKD
B & BT BT
INCOME Y& A
Dividend income [%BUg A 10(d) 3,282,461 2,441,527
Interest income F| 8 U A 10(c) 4,745 13,856
3,287,206 2,455,383
EXPENSES %z
Management fee &2 & 10(a) 259,478 349,714
Transaction costs on investments & S A 11 71,988 64,737
Formation costs A AR 9 - 630,021
331,466 1,044,472

NET PROFIT BEFORE INVESTMENT, EXCHANGE LOSS

5T IR E ROMEEE R Z A M HEE 2,955,740 1,410,911
NET INVESTMENT, EXCHANGE LOSS % & K 4ME 518558
Net exchange loss MEEIE/F 58 (44,372) (69,134)
Realised loss on sale of investments HE&E®RE 2 B #H EE (5,403,554) (7,435,858)
Unrealised appreciation/(diminution)

in value of investments

BERZ RERILE CRE) 14,794,196 (14,995,639)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX FiaiEF] (E51E) 12,302,010 (21,089,720)
Tax Hi1& 7 (191,587) (143,967)
PROFIT/(LOSS) AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD

F /RN (BER) ka2Ek=8a5E 12,110,423 (21,233,687)
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Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2024

CURRENT ASSETS Rgh&iE
Investments & &
Prepayments J&{I 18

Dividend and other receivables I8 K E b gl k18

Bank balances iR74564

Total current assets EEEAE

CURRENT LIABILITIES @& (&
Management fee payable BENERE

Total current liabilities B & & 41(E

Net current assets 2 & &E FE

Net assets attributable to unitholders
BUBFEBEARMNEEFE

Units in issue B2 31T

Net asset value per unit #B & EFE

BN R

R-ZE-WF+=—AH—A

NOTES
B et

10(d) & 12

10(c) & 13

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=
HKD HKD
BT BT
45,333,662 93,171,991
56,182 213,234
11,268 104,760
193,773 64,427
45,594,885 93,554,412
100,449 105,649
100,449 105,649
45,494,436 93,448,763
45,494,436 93,448,763
5,000,000 11,500,000
9.0989 8.1260
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Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET
ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
UNITHOLDERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Balance as at 29 March 2023 (date of inception)
RZZZ=F=AHNHB (K ZB8H) "k

Loss and total comprehensive income for the period

HREBEREEWZAEE
Issue of units T8
Redemption of units f&E EE{L

Balance as at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024

R-E-_=F+_AM—BR-_T_MF—-A—-BN&EH

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

FREN R EEWERTE
Redemption of units f& B &E A1

Balance as at 31 December 2024 W-_Z_WNF+ - A — B4

Number of units in issue
ERTENEE

Units in issue at the beginning of the year/period
F/BYIBBITEN

Issue of units ZE7TE 7

Redemption of units f&[E {7

Units in issue at the end of the year/period
F/ERBBEITEN

17

BEVBEARGEERHESDX

HE_Z-_NF+-_AM—BLFE

Total

#at

NOTES HKD
B & BT

(21,233,687)
134,457,450
(19,775,000)

8 93,448,763

12,110,423
(60,064,750)

8 45,494,436

For the

period from

29 March

For the 2023 (date of

year ended inception) to
31 December 31 December

2024 2023

= =S

=AtHhA

BZE (R BH)EE

—E_ME —=E-=

NOTES +=AM#M—A +=AM—A
Bt EE LFE LIEHARS
8 11,500,000 -
8 - 14,000,000
8 (6,500,000) (2,500,000)
8 5,000,000 11,500,000




Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

BERERXR
HE_Z-_NF+-_AM—BLFE

For the
period from
29 March
For the 2023 (date of
year ended inception) to
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
H-E-=F
=ZRAtThA
BE (R BH)EE
—E-NE —E-=HF
t+t=AM-—A +t=AM—A
LFE IHHIE
NOTE HKD HKD
Bt = BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4@ EHELENREHE
Profit/(loss) before tax FialEF/(EiE) 12,302,010 (21,089,720)
Adjustments for: LATIBE #:A%
Dividend income xS A (3,282,461) (2,441,527)
Interest income #E4A (4,745) (13,856)
9,014,804 (23,545,103)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss
BRATEEBESIIRMBEERD /(M) 47,838,329 (93,171,991)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments Tt R4/ (3240) 157,052 (213,234)
(Decrease)/increase in management fee payable
ERERE (RL),/ (5,200) 105,649
Cash from/(used in) operations @&+ /(FH)HIEE 57,004,985 (116,824,679)
Dividend received, net of withholding tax MKRTEHFEHE KIS 3,184,366 2,192,800
Interest received 24 F| 2 4,745 13,856
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
BEETHEL/ (FR)EANFRERE 60,194,096 (114,618,023)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EHELRRESRE
Proceeds from issue of units 377 BRI P15 FIE - 134,457,450
Payments on redemption of units B&[al & F A (60,064,750) (19,775,000)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities
BMEEH(ER),/ EENFRERE (60,064,750) 114,682,450
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RekReEEWEmssa 129,346 64,427
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR/PERIOD
F/ BNz R e RAEEEY 64,427 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR/PERIOD
F/PR2BE KRR EEY 193,773 64,427
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRRESENNERIN
Bank balances $R174 % 13 193,773 64,427
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Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2024
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THE FUND

BOCHK ETF Series (the “Trust”) is a unit trust
established by a trust deed dated 10 March 2023
(as may be amended, modified or supplemented
from time to time) with BOCI-Prudential Asset
Management Limited as the Manager and BOCI-
Prudential Trustee Limited as the Trustee of the
Trust. The Trust is established under and governed
by the laws of Hong Kong. The Trustee is also the
custodian, administrator and registrar of the Trust
and the Sub-Fund.

The Trust is an umbrella fund under which index-
tracking sub-funds will be established. The Sub-Fund
is a sub-fund of the Trust. Only one (1) class of
Units, the Listed Unit Class, is currently available in
relation to the Sub-Fund.

The BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition
ETF (the “Sub-Fund”) is an index-tracking exchange
traded fund which seeks to provide investment
performance (before fees and expenses) that tracks
the performance of the S&P BOCHK China Hong
Kong Greater Bay Area Net Zero 2050 Climate
Transition Index (“Underlying Index”). In order to
achieve the investment objective of the Sub-Fund,
the Sub-Fund primarily adopts a full replication
strategy through investing all or substantially all
in constituent securities of the Underlying Index
(“Index Securities”), broadly in proportion to the
respective weightings of the Index Securities. The
Manager may also use a representative sampling
strategy where it is not possible to acquire certain
securities which are Index Securities due to
restrictions or limited availability where the Manager
considers appropriate in its absolute discretion.
Please refer to the information of the Sub-Fund
published on the Manager’s website (www.boci-pru.
com.hk) for details.
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Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs")

New and amended standards and interpretations

There are no new and amended standards and
interpretations as of issuance date of the Sub-
Fund’s financial statements that are expected to
have material impact on the Sub-Fund’s financial
statements.

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRS

The Sub-Fund has not applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are
not yet effective, in these financial statements. The
Sub-Fund intends to apply these new and revised
HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become effective.

Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements*
Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of
Financial Instruments 2

HKFRS 18

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

1 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2027
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2026
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Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

2.

21

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that
are expected to be applicable to the Sub-Fund is
described below:

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have
been brought forward from HKAS 1 with limited
changes, HKFRS 18 introduces new requirements for
presentation within the statement of profit or loss,
including specified totals and subtotals. Entities are
required to classify all income and expenses within
the statement of profit or loss into one of the
five categories: operating, investing, financing,
income taxes and discontinued operations and to
present two new defined subtotals. It also requires
disclosures about management-defined performance
measures in a single note and introduces enhanced
requirements on the grouping (aggregation and
disaggregation) and the location of information
in both the primary financial statements and the
notes. Some requirements previously included in
HKAS 1 are moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
which is renamed as HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation
of Financial Statements. As a consequence of the
issuance of HKFRS 18, limited, but widely applicable,
amendments are made to HKAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share and HKAS
34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition, there are
minor consequential amendments to other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 18 and the consequential amendments
to other HKFRSs are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier
application permitted. Retrospective application
is required. The Sub-Fund is currently analysing
the new requirements and assessing the impact of
HKFRS 18 on the presentation and disclosure of the
Sub-Fund’s financial statements.
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Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impact of issued but not yet effective HKFRS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
date on which a financial asset or financial liability
is derecognised and introduce an accounting policy
option to derecognise a financial liability that is
settled through an electronic payment system
before the settlement date if specified criteria are
met. The amendments clarify how to assess the
contractual cash flow characteristics of financial
assets with environmental, social and governance
and other similar contingent features. Moreover,
the amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying financial assets with non-recourse
features and contractually linked instruments. The
amendments also include additional disclosures for
investments in equity instruments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income and
financial instruments with contingent features. The
amendments shall be applied retrospectively with
an adjustment to opening retained profits (or other
component of equity) at the initial application date.
Prior periods are not required to be restated and
can only be restated without the use of hindsight.
Earlier application of either all the amendments at
the same time or only the amendments related to
the classification of financial assets is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Sub-Fund’s financial
statements.
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Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

3.

23

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed
and the relevant financial statement disclosure
requirements specified in Appendix E of the Code on
Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds (the “Code”) issued by
The Securities and Futures Commission (SFC).

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods. The
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HKD”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest dollar, except when otherwise indicated.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Sub-Fund takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these financial statements
is determined on such a basis.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

o Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Financial instruments

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Sub-
Fund’s business model for managing them. The Sub-
Fund initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest ("SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Sub-Fund’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Sub-Fund commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Sub-Fund measures financial assets at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria
for debt instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at fair value through profit or
loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Sub-Fund recognises an allowance for ECLs
for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Sub-Fund expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash
flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Since the Sub-Fund holds only short-term
receivables which do not contain a significant
financing component or applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Sub-Fund applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Sub-Fund does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Sub-Fund has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Sub-Fund
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

Redeemable shares are classified as equity
instruments when:

o the redeemable shares entitle the holder to a
pro rata share of the Sub-Fund’s net assets in
the event of the Sub-Fund’s liquidation

° the redeemable shares are in the class of
instruments that is subordinate to all other
classes of instruments

° all redeemable shares in the «class of
instruments that is subordinate to all other
classes of instruments have identical features

o the redeemable shares do not include any
contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset other than the holder’s rights to
a pro rata share of the Sub-Fund’s net assets
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity instruments (continued)

. the total expected cash flows attributable to
the redeemable shares over the life of the
instrument are based substantially on the profit
or loss, the change in the recognised net assets
or the change in the fair value of the recognised
and unrecognised net assets of the Sub-Fund
over the life of the instrument

In addition to the redeemable shares having all of
the above features, the Sub-Fund must have no
other financial instrument or contract that has:

o total cash flows based substantially on the
profit or loss, the change in the recognised net
assets or the change in the fair value of the
recognised and unrecognised net assets of the
Trust.

o the effect of substantially restricting or
fixing the residual return to the redeemable
unitholders.

The Sub-Fund’s redeemable units meet these
conditions and are classified as equity.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including management fee
payable are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Sub-Fund derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when they transfer the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Sub-Fund derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Sub-Fund’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-
term investments in an active market with original
maturities of three months or less and bank
overdrafts, if any.

Net gain or loss on financial assets at FVPL

Net gains or losses on financial assets at FVPL are
changes in the fair value of financial assets held for
trading or designated upon initial recognition as at
FVPL and exclude interest and dividend income and
expense.

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the
fair value of financial instruments for the year and
from reversal of prior period’s unrealised gains and
losses for financial instruments which were realised
in the reporting period. Realised gains and losses
on disposals of financial instruments classified as at
FVPL are calculated using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. They represent the difference between an
instrument’s initial carrying amount and disposal
amount.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Sub-Fund and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Sub-
Fund and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Expenses

All expenses are recognised in profit or loss in the
year in which they are incurred.

Distribution payable to unitholders

Distribution to unitholders is recognised as a liability
in the statement of financial position in the period
in which the distributions are approved by the
Manager.

Events after the reporting period

If the Sub-Fund receives information after
the reporting period, but prior to the date of
authorisation for issue, about conditions that existed
at the end of the reporting period, it will assess
whether the information affects the amounts that it
recognises in its financial statements. The Sub-Fund
will adjust the amounts recognised in its financial
statements to reflect any adjusting events after
the reporting period and update the disclosures
that relate to those conditions in light of the new
information. For non-adjusting events after the
reporting period, the Sub-Fund will not change the
amounts recognised in its financial statements, but
will disclose the nature of the non-adjusting events
and an estimate of their financial effects, or a
statement that such an estimate cannot be made, if
applicable.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Sub-
Fund, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Sub-Fund (foreign
currencies) are recorded in the functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Sub-Fund operates) at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Exchange difference
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the year.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Sub-Fund if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Sub-
Fund;

(ii) has significant influence over the Sub-
Fund; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Sub-Fund or of a parent

of the Sub-Fund;

or
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Sub-Fund are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Sub-Fund are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Sub-Fund or an entity related to the
Sub-Fund;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group

of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Sub-Fund or to the parent of the Sub-
Fund.

Income taxes

In some jurisdictions, investment income and capital
gains are subject to withholding tax deducted at
the source of the income. The Sub-Fund presents
the withholding tax separately from the gross
investment income in profit or loss. For the purpose
of the statement of cash flows, cash inflows from
investments are presented gross of withholding
taxes, when applicable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Sub-Fund’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the Manager
and the Trustee are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

In preparing these financial statements, the Manager
and the Trustee have made certain assumptions
and used various estimates concerning the liability
arising from the tax exposure which may vary
dependent on what will happen in the future. The
resulting accounting estimates may not equal the
related actual results.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

Taxation

Caishui [2014] No. 81 - Circular on issues relating to
the tax policy of the pilot inter-connected mechanism
for trading on the Shanghai and Hong Kong stock
markets (“Circular 81”) and Caishui [2016] No.
127 - Circular on issues relating to the tax policy
of the pilot inter-connected mechanism for trading
on the Shenzhen and Hong Kong stock markets
("Circular 127") went into effect on 17 November
2014 and 5 December 2016, respectively. Circular
81 and Circular 127 allow non-Chinese investors to
invest in certain listed A-shares through Hong Kong
securities firms. Under Circular 81 and Circular 127,
business tax is temporarily exempted on realised
gains from trading A-shares listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange ("SSE”) and Shenzhen Stock
Exchange ("SZSE”) derived by Hong Kong investors
through the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect (collectively the
“Stock Connects”) Program. In addition, when Hong
Kong investors trade A-shares listed on the SSE
and SZSE through the Stock Connects, the stamp
duty shall be paid according to currently effective
mainland tax laws and regulations.

PRC taxes on dividends

The Sub-Fund is subject to PRC withholding income
tax ("WIT”) at a rate of 10% on the dividend income
received from China A-Shares and Hong Kong
H-shares.

The Sub-Fund accrued the PRC WIT provision
on these dividend income during the year and is
included in “Tax” in the statements of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the Sub-Fund.

BEEHERAGT THBE R EERR (8)

EZgtbE REBR (B)

HE

(F172[2014]815% — BANEEREMHERXHE
Bk B SR B BE R MR SR 0@ ) (1815558
M) ARCEBI[2016]127 5% — BARRBR
ENHR 5 B0 5 B R A BT R AE
;) (T1275%@7 ) DHR —F—mE+—A+
TtARZE-RF+-ARARBER - 815%E
HAL27FBAAFF P EREERBEEES
NEHREET ETRAR - RIES1SEAN127
SEA - BEREEBBEEREMSRZEH
EEEHMRERET SRS LB LA (5
WOEBBMRER]) N LEESR M ([ £EX
P 1) MRINESZ X H P (DRZF]) BEE AR
FRE R M e B R R A 2 A » LSh - 1
REEREEBEEBANFREBEEN LA
KORZZFT E VAR - ZAIRIRIRTT AR A AR
TSRERAEARG T ENTER

i BEAR B

FES AL B AN E S H AT E LS IR
AIZ10% 2 HR B BRI S ©

FEESIFABREMAMEL BEIEH S A #
B TR TESHESREME2EKRERTA
[FH|JET -

34



Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

5.

35

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The objective of the Sub-Fund is to provide
investment results that closely correspond to the
performance of their respective indices. The Sub-
Fund’s investing activities expose them to various
types of risk that are associated with the financial
instruments and markets in which they invest. The
risk exposures inherent in the Sub-Fund and the risk
management policies employed by the Sub-Fund are
discussed below.

(i) Market risk
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of
a financial instrument or future cash flows will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest
rates. The majority of the Sub-Fund’s financial
assets and financial liabilities are non-interest
bearing. As a result, the Sub-Fund is not
subject to significant amount of risk due to
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates.

The Manager is of the opinion that the Sub-
Fund’s sensitivity to the change in interest rate
is low.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that value of the underlying
securities will fluctuate as a result of changes
in market price and foreign exchange rate
(other than those arising from interest rate
risk), whether caused by factors specific to an
individual underlying investment, its issuers or
all factors affecting all instruments traded in the
market.

The Sub-Fund is designated to track the
performance of the relevant index, therefore
the exposures to market risk in the Sub-Fund
will be substantially the same as the tracked
index. The Manager manages the Sub-Fund’s
exposures to market risk by ensuring that
the key characteristics of the portfolio, such
as security weighting and industry weighting,
is closely aligned to the characteristics of the
tracked indices as mentioned in respective
prospectus.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. £®IAGE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies PRREERERBER (8)

(continued)

(i) Market risk (continued) (i) TEEK (&)

Price risk (continued)

At 31 December 2024, the Sub-Fund’s
investments are concentrated in the following
industries:

B (&)

RIZZ-_WF+ZAM—B  FEEKRE

TREFRATITE

% of net
Fair value of asset
underlying value
shares LEEFRE
HERG A FE B2 (%)
HKD
BT
Investments — By Industry Sector
KE — UITESIE

Communication Services ERT 4,034,998 8.87
Consumer Discretionary JENFEEE R 11,865,682 26.08
Consumer Staples T ZHEH 2,322,847 5.11
Energy &8 136,302 0.30
Financials €& 12,062,068 26.51
Health Care %5374 2,414,833 5.31
Industrials % 4,110,475 9.04
Information Technology {Z 8 #if 4,691,903 10.31
Materials R4 # 579,143 1.27
Real Estate EihiE 1,801,293 3.96
Utilities 2= 1,314,118 2.89
Total &5t 45,333,662 99.65
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FRSRBETFRIINFES
5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. &®mTA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies PRREERERBER (8)
(continued)
(i) Market risk (continued) (i) TEEK (&)
Price risk (continued) Bt /mf (&)
At 31 December 2023, the Sub-Fund’s RZEZ=ZF+-AM—8 ' FELEE
investments are concentrated in the following FEEPRATITE -
industries:
% of net
Fair value of asset
underlying value
shares HEEFE
HERG A FE BA (%)
HKD
BT
Investments — By Industry Sector
& — UTTRES
Communication Services ERT 7,652,053 8.19
Consumer Discretionary JENFEEE R 23,467,592 25.11
Consumer Staples EZHEH 6,112,828 6.54
Energy 858 150,492 0.16
Financials & 23,127,822 24.75
Health Care %4374 6,636,135 7.10
Industrials % 7,056,175 7.55
Information Technology {Z 8 #if 8,243,035 8.82
Materials R4 # 3,027,698 3.24
Real Estate EiiE 5,101,976 5.46
Utilities N $E 2,596,185 2.78
Total &5t 93,171,991 99.70
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i) Market risk (continued)

Price risk (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Sub-Fund invested all, or substantially all, of its
assets directly in the constituents comprising
the S&P BOCHK China Hong Kong Greater
Bay Area Net Zero 2050 Climate Transition
Index. The Sub-Fund is therefore exposed to
substantially the same market price risk as
the S&P BOCHK China Hong Kong Greater Bay
Area Net Zero 2050 Climate Transition Index.
If the S&P BOCHK China Hong Kong Greater
Bay Area Net Zero 2050 Climate Transition
Index component share prices in local currency
were to increase/decrease by 10% with all
other variables held constant, this would
increase/decrease the profit before taxation
for the year by approximately HKD4,533,366
(2023: increase/decrease profit before taxation
HKD9,317,199).

The 10% represents the Manager and the
Trustee’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in market prices.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of
financial instruments denominated in foreign
currencies will fluctuate due to the changes in
exchange rates.

The Sub-Fund holds monetary assets and
investments denominated in currencies other
than HKD which is a bank account denominated
in RMB, they are exposed to currency risk
related to RMB against HKD.

5.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

()

(i)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The table below summarises the Sub-Fund’s
exposure to currency risk on the statements of
financial position.

At 31 December 2024
Currency exposure to RMB
RZZEZWF+=AM—H
AR¥ 2 B RR
Monetary assets S &E

At 31 December 2023
Currency exposure to RMB
R-ZE_=F+_RAM—H
ARB 2 B RR

Monetary assets &

EREE

If the year end RMB spot exchange rate was
to appreciate/depreciate by 4% against the
HKD with all other variables held constant, it
would increase/decrease profit for the year
by approximately HKD559 (2023: increase/
decrease loss for the period HKD955). The
4% represents the Manager and the Trustee’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Sub-Fund.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and
2023, financial assets which potentially subject
the Sub-Fund to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of bank balances.

5.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. &®mTA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies PRREERERBUER (8)
(continued)
(ii) Credit risk (continued) (il) EERKE (&)
At the reporting date, the Sub-Fund’s maximum RREBE - FESEHNEANEERR
exposure to credit risk is mainly as follows: FEE:
HKD
BT
At 31 December 2024 R _Z_NF+_— A#—H
Bank balances R7745% 193,773
Investments &#& 45,333,662
Dividend and other receivables &2 K E fih fE s sk 1E 11,268
Total #5f 45,538,703
At 31 December 2023 R=Z=_=F+=AM#—H
Bank balances $R1745% 64,427
Investments &#& 93,171,991
Dividend and other receivables R%. B K E {th & g 178 104,760
Total #5f 93,341,178
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(ii) Credit risk (continued)

The bank balances are held with Bank of
China (Hong Kong) Limited and Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited. The
Manager and Trustee consider the associated
credit risk is not significant as the counterparty
is reputable bank in Hong Kong.

The Sub-Fund invests directly in index
constituent shares listed on the SEHK and
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. All transactions in
securities are settled or paid for upon delivery
using approved and reputable brokers.

Financial —assets subject to HKFRS 9’s
impairment requirements

The Sub-Fund’s financial assets subject to the
ECL model within HKFRS 9 are bank balances
and dividend and other receivables. At 31
December 2024, no loss allowance had been
provided for bank balances and dividend and
other receivables. There is not considered to
be any concentration of credit risk within these
assets. No assets are considered impaired and
no amounts have been written off in the year/
period.

As only bank balances and dividend and other
receivables are impacted by the HKFRS 9 ECL
model, the Sub-Fund has adopted the simplified
approach. The loss allowance shown, if any, is
therefore based on lifetime ECLs.

In calculating the loss allowance, a provision
matrix has been used based on historical
observed loss rates over the expected life of
the receivables adjusted for forward-looking
estimates.

5.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets not subject to HKFRS 9’s
impairment requirements

The Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on
investments. These classes of financial assets
are not subject to HKFRS 9’s impairment
requirements as they are measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The
carrying value of these assets, under HKFRS
9 represents the Sub-Fund’s maximum
exposure to credit risk on financial instruments
not subject to the HKFRS 9’s impairment
requirements on the respective reporting dates.

The Sub-Fund only trades with reputable
brokers authorised by management. The bank
balances are held with reputable banks in Hong
Kong. The Manager and Trustee consider the
associated credit risk is not significant. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the year
end is the carrying amount of financial assets
as shown in the statement of net assets. None
of the assets is impaired nor past due but not
impaired.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Sub-Fund
may not be able to generate sufficient cash or
resources to settle its obligations in full as they
fall due or can only do so on terms that are
materially disadvantageous.

Although the units of the Sub-Fund are listed
on the SEHK and are readily transferable in the
open market, the participating dealer (“PD")
may also demand the Sub-Fund to redeem their
units at the PD’s discretion. The underlying
investments of the Sub-Fund are listed shares
which can be readily disposed of for cash. Thus,
the liquidity risk is considered low.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Sub-Fund’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
reporting date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows and on the basis of
the earliest date on which the Sub-Fund can be
required to pay. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is insignificant.

At 31 December 2024 R _Z_NF+_— A#—H
Less than 1 month LR —1EAH
Financial liabilities B & &

Management fee payable ENERE

At 31 December 2023 R=Z=_=F+=AM#—H
Less than 1 month LR —1EAH
Financial liabilities B &1&

Management fee payable EfEEE

5.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined by the Manager and the
Trustee as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to
qguoted market bid prices, adjusted for potential
tax exposure, if any.

. the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flows analysis.

The Manager and the Trustee considered that the
fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate their amortised cost.

$®MIAE(E)
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o ABRERFMEHALNERRBTISE
BENMIBEE  HEAFEDZEMSMER
BEANEBEE  ITKEERTER (W0E) A

B o
=

o HMBEELMBAGNHAFEIIRE
EREXNEBEN  ZURRSTRED
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

value measurements recognised in the

statement of financial position

(iv) Fair value of financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

At 31 December 2024 A-Z—E+ = AM—H

SWMIAE(E)
RUBRREHER L A EE

(iv) ¥ BEEZ DA VFE (RBRAERTEAQY
f#)
TREHROEREARTEAEZ 2R
TRZAH  ZEFEERTAREQFER
BENREE  H»RE—& F-ARE=

HKD
BT

Financial assets at FVTPL 2 A F(EF BIEFIIIRNIIEEE

Investments - Level 1 && — F—#H

- Listed equities in Hong Kong R&® EMRE

- Listed equities in PRC A/ E R EHIRE

Investments - Level 2 #&& — F -

- Listed equities in Hong Kong W& EmE

- Listed equities in PRC AR E A EHIRE

Investments - Level 3 —&& —F=/

- Listed equities in Hong Kong R&B FHKE

- Listed equities in PRC AR EI A EHRE

35,710,066
9,623,596

45,333,662
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

statement of financial position (continued)

(iv) Fair value of financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continued)

At 31 December 2023 R -_=F+_-_AM—H

SWMITAE(E)
REERRRERZ AFEZE ()

(iv) ¥ BEEZ D VFE (RBRAERTEAQY
8) (&)

HKD

BT

Financial assets at FVTPL 2 A BB BIERVIRNTEEE

Investments - Level 1 #&& — F—#&

- Listed equities in Hong Kong R&#& tTRE
- Listed equities in PRC AR B EHRE

Investments - Level 2 #&& — F &

- Listed equities in Hong Kong R&#& tHRE

- Listed equities in PRC AR B E I E

Investments - Level 3 8% —F£=%

- Listed equities in Hong Kong R&#& tTRE

- Listed equities in PRC AR E R EHIE

There were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
the year/period.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Sub-Fund is an index-tracking fund seeking to
track the performance of the respective benchmark
index. The capital is represented by the redeemable
units outstanding. The Sub-Fund does not have
any internally and externally imposed capital
requirements and therefore the Sub-Fund is not
subject to significant capital risk.

71,926,650
21,245,341

93,171,991
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Sub-Fund’s units entitle the holders of the
units to dividends when declared and to payment
of a proportionate share of the Sub-Fund’s net
asset value on redemption date or upon winding
up of the Trust. The total expected cash outflow on
redemption of all the Sub-Fund’s units equals the
Sub-Fund’s equity.

The Sub-Fund’s objective in managing the capital
is to maximise returns to all investors, and to
manage liquidity risk arising from the redemptions.
The Manager manages the capital of the Sub-
Fund in accordance with the respective Sub-Fund’s
investment objectives and policies stated in the
prospectus, and may suspend the creation and
redemption of units under certain circumstances
stipulated in the prospectus.

TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made for the Sub-Fund as the bank interest,
dividend income and realised gain on sale of
investments of the Sub-Fund are excluded from the
charge to profits tax under Section 14, Section 26
or Section 26A of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Ordinance.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") on capital gains

With Circular 81 and Circular 127, effective from 17
November 2014 and 5 December 2016 respectively,
the gains derived by Hong Kong investors on the
trading of A-shares through the Stock Connects
program shall be temporarily be exempted from PRC
CIT.

PRC WIT on dividend income and interest income

BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition ETF is
also subjected to WIT on dividend income derived
from investments in China A-Shares and Hong
Kong H-Shares and on interest income derived from
PRC bank accounts where applicable. The WIT on
investment income described above is included in
taxation in the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

EXEBEE (#)

%%i RES B T EMSA ARNRERE
FERMOA - MREO R R(EEEDFRE

Hz%ﬁ‘i\éﬁfﬂﬁtt%iﬂ DHE - FREMAE

iz EAE“@HWE’\Ji‘EaJrﬁ@/ﬁﬁ%‘E%ﬂﬁ%ﬁé%%ﬁéﬁ@

5>

o
E/\\

FRELEBELRNBERRAMEREEHKEK
O WERHBLOMEELN RS ERRE - €
KIERERABEEMAFESNRE BFEREEK
BERFESNER WA AERBERATNE

TIER T EEIE R M BB S B

BiR

REBEBEBRBEAEL41K - F261583FE26A
k- FEESHRTNE  BREWARLEFES
RECERNBNBEGREENEH  HULE
EBFE fR{’E.‘ﬁjﬁéﬁ

BB ENPEPEMEH

RIEBLRMA R 12755 - DAl T — Y
Ft+—A+tAKRZ —/\E—F ARARE: &
BIREEBRBEBBIREBEBARMEAK
S EERENPRELRMAEMR

B B R B B TR0 Ko A S A

PIRE BN EERIRERETFHIEE BB AT
BEAHBRATERBRA KRR ERBERTIRS (20
B EENFERATVESHENR o itk
B ma BB ABR A2 EKER
HITIENA ©



Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

8.

NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS
AND NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

Number of units in issue

BEUREARLEEFERCRITEMHE

BERTEMHAE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F

Units in issue at the beginning of the year/period
F/ BRYIBBITEMN 11,500,000 -
Units issued o 31TEfL - 14,000,000
Units redeemed = BRI E A7 (6,500,000) (2,500,000)
Units in issue at the end of the year/period &~ Bk 2 31787 5,000,000 11,500,000

A reconciliation of the net assets attributable to
unitholders as reported in the statement of financial
position to the net assets attributable to unitholders
as determined for the purposes of processing unit
subscriptions and redemptions is provided below:

Net assets attributable to unitholders (Note)
BB ARLEERE (M)
Recognition of formation costs ¥R E

Net assets attributable to unitholders (per HKFRSs)

BURBAARGEEFE (REFEYHHREEL)

Note:

The net assets attributable to unitholders are
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
prospectus where formation costs are capitalised and
to be amortised over the first three financial years
of the operation of the Sub-Fund, while for the net
assets attributable to unitholders per HKFRSs, the
formation costs had to be deducted as they were
incurred in the inception year. As at 31 December
2024, the unamortised amount was HKD228,337
(2023: HKD457,299) and the remaining amortisation
period was 12 months.

AR K P MENELFEAREEEFE
B 70 B Y B8 {17 8 s N B 2] 7 e e ) ) B () B2 Y
BB ARGEEFENHRET

2024 2023
—E-pmE —g==

HKD HKD

BT BT

45,722,773 93,906,062

(228,337) (457,299)

45,494,436 93,448,763

B EE

BURKAARGEEFESREESRBERN
MERE  EFRIEREMNMEL N FESEE
BB =AM FE#E - MELSEARIGEE
FEARBEEASVHHRELEAGFE - KIZBERA
ERIEFEERMG R-Z_NOFE+_H
H—8 - REHEFR228,337B T (2T =
% 1 457,299/87T) - MAREIEHS12MEA -
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NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS
AND NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE (continued)

Net asset value per unit

Net asset value per unit &8 & EFE
Net asset value per unit (per financial statement)
BENEEFE (REMBHREK)

FORMATION COSTS

In accordance with the provisions of the prospectus,
formation costs determined by the Manager to be
borne by the Sub-Fund will be expensed in the first
three financial years.

The formation cost amortised during the year ended
31 December 2024 amounted to HKD228,962 (2023:
HKD172,722) and the remaining amortisation period
was 12 months.

BEUREABRGEEFERCRITEMHE (&)

BENEEFE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
9.1446 8.1657
9.0989 8.1260
RAIEHA

REESRBERZIGOURE - ESEEMETE
B ERER FESARE  URE=EMRF
JENEH

HE-_Z-_ME+ - AM—BIEFEBRERNAT
B A228,9628 7T (ZE =4 : 172,722
JT) - MFEIERESEE A 12 A -
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10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with the Manager, Trustee, Custodian
and their connected persons

Connected persons of the Manager, Trustee and
Custodian are those as defined in the Code issued
by the SFC. All transactions entered into during the
year/period between the Sub-Fund and the Manager,
Trustee and Custodian and their connected persons
were carried out in the normal course of business
and on normal commercial terms. To the best of
the Manager’s, the Trustee’s and the Custodian’s
knowledge, the Sub-Fund does not have any other
transactions with connected persons except those
disclosed below.

(a) Management fee paid to and servicing fee
waived or absorbed by the Manager

The Manager is entitled to receive a
management fee, the maximum management
fee the Manager may levy shall be 2.0% (2023:
2.0%) per annum of the net asset value of
the Sub-Fund. Currently the Manager levies at
the rate of 0.5% (2023: 0.5%) per annum for
BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition
ETF, accrued daily and calculated as at each
dealing day and payable monthly in arrears.

In addition, the Manager is entitled to receive
a servicing fee calculated at maximum 1%
(2023: 1%) per annum of the net asset value
of BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition
ETF. This fee is currently waived by the
Manager.

Apart from the fees and expenses stated in
the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, all other fees and
expenses of the Sub-Fund, including but
not limited to (i) the auditor’'s remuneration
of HKD74,260 (2023: HKD70,730), (ii) the
trustee fee of HKD40,639 (2023: HKD31,469),
(iii) transaction handling fee of HKD52,900
(2023: HKD47,000) and (iv) registrar fee of
HKD48,000 (2023: HKD36,129) were absorbed
by the Manager.

10.

BELRS
HESKE S ANEEARHBEATZR
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10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

51

Transactions with the Manager, Trustee, Custodian

and their connected persons (continued)

(b) Fees and charges paid and payable to the

(c)

trustee, custodian and their connected
persons

The Trustee is entitled to receive a trustee fee,
which is calculated as a percentage of the net
asset value of the Sub-Fund, accrued daily and
calculated as at each dealing day and payable
monthly in arrears. The trustee fee of BOCHK
Greater Bay Area Climate Transition ETF is
absorbed by the Manager, details are set up in
note 10(a) of the financial statements.

During the year, the Trustee has not received
an inception fee (2023: HKD40,000) from the
Sub-Fund for the establishment of the Trust
and the Sub-Fund.

Bank balances, interest income and bank
charges

Certain bank balances of the Sub-Fund are
maintained with the affiliate of the Custodian,
and carry interest at normal commercial rates.
During the year, interest income of HKD4,743
(2023: HKD13,856) was earned by the Sub-
Fund.

10. BELXRS (8]
HESKE SIEANEEALHEBEALTZR
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10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 10. BEFXRS (&)

Transactions with the Manager, Trustee, Custodian MAPEE  IXARAEAREBEEALZR

and their connected persons (continued) 2 (&)

(d) Investments and dividend income (d) BEERBREWA
During the vyear, the Sub-Fund made FA - FESKRERESEENBEER
investments in the stocks of the indirect ANE (RBISRITIRDBR AR IRE R E
holding company of the Manager, Bank of SEBRRMB AR (FREE (ZER) B
China Limited, and the fellow subsidiary of the FRAR)) MRS - EFHBEIIIT ¢

Manager, BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited,
details as follows.

2024 —E U
Purchase Sales
BEA B
HKD HKD
BT BT
BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition ETF
RIRE BN EERIRETETF
Bank of China Limited-H FBIEITIRHER AR —HAR 825,780 (2,146,652)
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
RARES (12A%) BIRAF) 72,325 (362,311)
During the vyear, dividend income of FR - FESRANESLENHZEER
HKD180,262 was earned by the Sub-Fund ANE (FBISRITIRDBR AR BIRE - B
for investment in the stocks of the indirect A% BURA180,262/87T © TEEHRER
holding company of the Manager, Bank of China BB RAWBAR (PHRES (ZER)
Limited. Dividend income of HKD30,573 was BIRAR) HMRE - BRER S U A 30,573
earned by the Sub-Fund for investments in the BTT o ZERE RIS D BEUER -

stocks of the fellow subsidiary of the Manager,
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited. The
dividend income from the investments are fully
received.

52



Sub-Fund of BOCHK ETF Series
FEREBETFRIINFES

10.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions with the Manager, Trustee, Custodian
and their connected persons (continued)

dividend

(d) Investments and income

(continued)

During the period, the Sub-Fund made
investments in the stocks of the indirect
holding company of the Manager, Bank of
China Limited, and the fellow subsidiary of the
Manager, BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited,
details as follows.

2023

BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition ETF

FIREERNERRIEEAETF

Bank of China Limited-H FBISRITIMD AR AT —HA&

BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
RIRES (IER) BRAF

During the period, dividend income of
HKD123,931 was earned by the Sub-Fund
for investment in the stocks of the indirect
holding company of the Manager, Bank of China
Limited. Dividend income of HKD23,245 was
earned by the Sub-Fund for investments in the
stocks of the fellow subsidiary of the Manager,
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited. The
dividend income from the investments are fully
received.

11. TRANSACTION COSTS ON INVESTMENTS AND

53

TRANSACTION HANDLING FEE

The transaction costs on investments and the
transaction handling fee pertain to the fees
incurred during the transactions of purchase or sell
investments. The transaction costs on investments
are paid to brokers or other service providers. The
transaction handling fee are paid to the Trustee,
details are set up in note 10(a) of the financial
statements.

10. BESXS (#)

HESKE SR ANEEARHBEATZR
5 (&)

(d) RERREWA (F)

HR - FESRENESSENMRER
nE (PERITROERAE) EERE
EREREMBLRR (FREE (R A

FRAR)) MARE - EFHBEPIT -
—E-=F
Purchase Sales
BA =
HKD HKD
BT BT
2,432,016 (479,357)
704,160 (189,431)

HR - FESRENESKENMRER
~E (PERITROBRAE) HEE - &
HR B A123,931/87 - TEESKRER
HeEBRARMBAR (FREE (FER)
BRAR) MR - REEKA23,245
BT - RFRE R WA ZBZUER

11. REXZRERRZFEHE

BREXGRARRGFREBEDNEREERER S
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12,

13.

14.

INVESTMENTS

Listed equities in Hong Kong R&B L HiRE
Listed equities in PRC AHE A Em xR

The Sub-Fund classifies its investments as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. These
financial assets are designated by the Manager and
the Trustee at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition. Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
are those that are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with
the Sub-Fund’s documented investment strategy.
The Sub-Fund’s policy requires the Manager and
the Trustee to evaluate the information about these
financial assets on a fair value basis together with
other related financial information.

The fair value of listed equities with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active markets are
determined with reference to quoted market closing
prices or bid prices, as applicable at the reporting
date.

BANK BALANCES

Bank balances carry floating interest rates quoted by
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited and Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

In the opinion of the Manager and the Trustee, all
activities of the Sub-Fund are in the single business
of investment activities conducted mainly in Hong
Kong. The chief operating decision maker of the
Sub-Fund is its Manager.

12. ®E

2024 2023

—EZNEF —E-=
HKD HKD
BT BT
35,710,066 71,926,650
9,623,596 21,245,341
45,333,662 93,171,991
FHEHEBRESEARAFERBIERTIIRA M
BEE - 25U BEERYREREREASEE

13.

14.

REFENRAFEEBEBEIIR - RAHERE
BAFEEBBRIIRNMBEESRETES
RERWE X EN A FEEEEE NFHEER
BOMFEE - TESHNBREBRESKENF

AABRBERAFEEERE MBI E R T
BRUBEENER -

PERMIE E B B ZERRRAGER BT
£ ERVEDZENSE HEMISF AT
BHREAG(WER) BT -

RITHER

IRITERIZTPERIT(FB) BERAREPEHT
ERTT (BRI AR AR FTIRAZBFIRTE -

2EER

HEeKERERAARR  TESNRHERE
—HIREBERY  REREXGEIEERBET
TEENEREERRAHLESEITRE -
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15.

16.

55

INVESTMENT LIMITATION AND PROHIBITIONS
UNDER THE CODE

According to Chapter 7.1 of the investment
limitations and prohibitions of a collective investment
scheme, the value of the Sub-Fund’s holding of
securities issued by any single issuer may not
exceed 10% of its total net asset value.

The SFC Code allows the Sub-Fund to invest in
constituent securities issued by a single issuer for
more than 10% of the Sub-Fund’s net asset value
provided that:

(a) the investment is limited to any constituent
securities that each accounts for more than
10% of the weighting of the index; and

(b) the Sub-Fund’s holding of any such constituent
securities may not exceed their respective
weightings in the index, except where
weightings are exceeded as a result of changes
in the composition of the index and the excess
is only transitional and temporary in nature.

The SFC Code further provides that, if the
investment limits stated above are breached, the
management company should take as a priority
objective all steps as are necessary within a
reasonable period of time to remedy the situation,
taking due account of the interests of the holders.

There were no constituent securities that individually
accounted for more than 10% of the net asset value
of the Sub-Fund and their respective weightings of
the Index as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Please refer to prospectus to see the details of
investment restrictions.

DISTRIBUTIONS

The Sub-Fund did not make any distribution during
the year ended 31 December 2024 and period ended
31 December 2023.

15.

16.
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17.

18.

19.

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Manager and any of its connected persons
may affect transactions by or through the agency
of another person with whom the Manager or any
of its connected persons have a soft commission
arrangement. Under such arrangements, that party
will from time to time provide to or procure for the
Manager or any of its connected persons, goods,
services or other benefits. The nature of their
provision can reasonably be expected to benefit
the Sub-Fund as a whole and may contribute to
an improvement in the Sub-Fund’s performance.
No direct payment is made for the provision of
goods, services or other benefits to that party, but
instead the Manager or any of its connected persons
undertake to place business with that party.

There were no soft commission arrangements in
connection with directing transactions of the Sub-
Fund through a broker or dealer during the year/
period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

During the period from 1 January 2025 to 11 April
2025, there were 500,000 units of redemption of the
Sub-Fund.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee
on 25 April 2025.

17.

18.

19.

FERMATRH
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(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (UNAUDITED)
REMAES (REER)

As at 31 December 2024
RZZEZWF+=AM—AH

Securities name
BHER

Listed equities
FHRE

China (Stock Connect)
RE R CBER RS R)

37 INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT NETWORK
TECHNOLOGY GROUP CO LTD-A
—tHIRERBIREEROER AR — AR
AIER EYE HOSPITAL GROUP CO LTD-A
ERRMNEREERDER AT —AR
ANHUI GUJING DISTILLERY CO LTD-A
ZREFEBRDBRAT —AK
AVARY HLDG SHENZHEN CO LTD-A
B5 S A% ORI BRI BR AR — AR
BANK OF NINGBO CO LTD-A EHIRFTRMHBRAE —AMK
BEIJING ORIENTAL YUHONG WATERPROOF TECHNOLOGY
CO LTD-A L mE AR /KM GB AR AR — AR
BOE TECHNOLOGY GROUP CO LTD-A
RRAREEBRBRMNAERAR —AR
CGN POWER CO LTD-A FEIEZENRHER AT —ARR
CHAOZHOU THREE-CIRCLE GROUP CO LTD-A
FIN=3R (RE) RN BRAG —AR
CHINA GREATWALL TECHNOLOGY GROUP CO LTD-A
FERBBHEEBEROERAF —ARKR
CHINA MERCHANTS EXPRESSWAY
NETWORK & TECHNOLOGY HLDGS CO LTD-A
B ARBEEHIERR D BER AT —AK
CHINA MERCHANTS SHEKOU INDUSTRIAL
ZONE HOLDINGS CO LTD-A
HEBit O TERTERBRGER AR —AK
CHINA RESOURCES SANJIU MEDICAL &
PHARMACEUTICAL CO LTD-A
EH-NBERHBRAR —AR
CHONGQING ZHIFEI BIOLOGICAL PRODUCTS CO LTD-A
EREREDEGBRHDABRAR —ARK
CNGR ADVANCED MATERIAL CO LTD-A
FEFMERRMDERA T — AR
CONTEMPORARY AMPEREX TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A
BEERAEREERNBRAT —AR
EAST MONEY INFORMATION CO LTD-A
RAUEEERNBRAG —AR
EOPTOLINK TECHNOLOGY INC LTD-A
RE T S BB E R (i AR A B — AR
FOCUS MEDIA INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A
N RBEE BHMR D BER AT — AR
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% of
net asset
value
Holdings Fair value {(8&E&E%E
BERE AFE BIE(%)
HKD
BT
15,500 256,965 0.56
11,147 156,559 0.34
300 55,109 0.12
1,200 46,402 0.10
5,600 144,304 0.32
4,100 56,411 0.12
29,416 136,884 0.30
29,200 127,831 0.28
1,600 65,312 0.14
2,600 40,154 0.09
16,500 243,985 0.54
6,600 71,639 0.16
1,770 83,191 0.18
2,000 55,756 0.12
2,740 104,907 0.23
1,200 338,352 0.74
21,220 580,774 1.28
600 73,509 0.16
12,500 93,148 0.20



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)
PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (UNAUDITED) (continued)
REHEE REER) ()

As at 31 December 2024

RZZ_ME+_AM—B

% of
net asset
value
Securities name Holdings Fair value HEEFE
EHEB BERE AFE BIE(%)
Listed equities (continued) HKD
EHRE (&) BT
China (Stock Connect) (continued)
REA CEER RER) (B)
GANFENG LITHIUM GROUP CO LTD-A 2,000 74,221 0.16
IPEER B E R ER M BRAF — AR
GUANGZHOU SHIYUAN ELECTRONIC TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A 1,900 74,337 0.16
BINRIREFRHE R D BR A F — AR
GUOSEN SECURITIES CO LTD-A 6,900 81,917 0.18
BliEEFBRHAERAR —ARK
HITHINK ROYALFLUSH INFORMATION NETWORK CO LTD-A 400 121,900 0.27
ATz RTEIEAE &5 ERMBR AR — AR
HUADONG MEDICINE CO LTD-A 2,400 88,022 0.19
ERBEEROHERAF —AR
HUALI INDUSTRIAL GROUP CO LTD-A 600 50,021 0.11
FILEFEXSBEROERAF —ARKR
HUIZHOU DESAY SV AUTOMOTIVE CO LTD-A 1,000 116,717 0.26
BNMEEARTIEETRHERAE —ARR
INNER MONGOLIA DIAN TOU ENERGY CORPORATION LTD-A 2,600 53,962 0.12
N EBIZEFRRMDBRAE —AR
IEIT SYSTEMS CO LTD-A RHEEFEEEXKROHABRAT —AR 3,800 208,973 0.46
IFLYTEK CO LTD-A BIRFRBRHDER A E —ARK 1,900 97,316 0.21
IMEIK TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT CO LTD-A 440 85,118 0.19
BEREHMERIROER AR —ARK
JIANGSU YANGHE BREWERY JOINT-STOCK CO LTD-A 1,800 159,375 0.35
LE BN BRAG —AR
KUANG-CHI TECHNOLOGIES CO LTD-A 1,800 91,202 0.20
SR RH AR AT — AR
KUNLUN TECH CO LTD-A EmB8#HERERNBR AT —AR 1,000 40,789 0.09
LINGYI ITECH GUANGDONG CO-A 16,900 143,312 0.32
BREREERNBRAG —AR
LUXSHARE PRECISION INDUSTRY CO LTD-A 9,700 419,094 0.92
VABEIERNBRAG —AR
LUZHOU LAOJIAO CO LTD-A 1,300 172,526 0.38
EMEERODERA R — AR
MANGO EXCELLENT MEDIA CO LTD-A 11,543 329,015 0.72
TRBERKODBR AR — AR
MUYUAN FOODS CO LTD-A 3,900 158,911 0.35
WRR MO ERA R — AR
NAURA TECHNOLOGY GROUP CO LTD-A 800 331,568 0.73

ETEARMREBRNDAR DT — AR
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PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REHE (REEZX) (E)
As at 31 December 2024
RZZEZWF+=AM—AH

Securities name

BHER

Listed equities (continued)
EHRE (&)

China (Stock Connect) (continued)
REA CEER RER) (B)

PING AN BANK CO LTD-A FZIRITIRMDBR AR —AR

QINGHAI SALT LAKE INDUSTRY CO LTD-A

SHENTEROBRAT —AR

RONGSHENG PETRO CHEMICAL CO LTD-A

ERERA{ERHERAT — AR

S F HLDG CO LTD-A JBZ R M AR AR —AK

SATELLITE CHEMICAL CO LTD-A BE{LERMNAR AR —AK

SHENWAN HONGYUAN GROUP CO LTD-A

RELRREBERNDABRAT —AR

SHENZHEN INOVANCE TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A

FYITE MR mAERAT — AR

SHENZHEN MINDRAY BIO-MEDICAL ELECTRONICS CO LTD-A

FBIREMBEEETROER AR —AK

SHENZHEN NEW INDUSTRIES BIOMEDICAL ENGINEERING
CO LTD-A FYITFHEEEMELTRERMBR AT —AR

SIEYUAN ELECTRIC CO LTD-A BRERBRMNBR A F —ARK

SINOMINE RESOURCE GROUP CO LTD-A

PEEREBBRMHERA T — AR

SUNGROW POWER SUPPLY CO LTD-A

IR ERROBERAT —ARK

SUZHOU TFC OPTICAL COMMUNICATION CO LTD-A

BMRXEXBERNERAT —AR

TCL TECHNOLOGY GROUP CORP-A

TCLEMSER KO AR AR —AR

TIANQI LITHIUM CORP-A KE{BZR G ER AT — AR

WEICHAI POWER CO LTD-A #%8) HRD AR AT —ARK

WENS FOODSTUFF GROUP CO LTD-A

BREREERNDBRAT —AR

WULIANGYE YIBIN CO LTD-A EERERKRMH AR AR — AR

WUS PRINTED CIRCUIT (KUNSHAN) CO LTD-A

BLTEFRODABERRAT —AK

XCMG CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY CO LTD-A

BRIEBETIERERBRNDBRAT —AR
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% of
net asset
value
Holdings Fair value {(8&E&E%E
BERE AFE BIE(%)
HKD
BT
23,100 286,486 0.63
3,600 62,811 0.14
12,900 123,750 0.27
10,300 439,995 0.97
2,900 57,760 0.13
15,600 88,468 0.19
4,000 248,379 0.55
1,700 459,511 1.00
1,000 75,102 0.16
700 53,943 0.12
1,400 52,682 0.12
1,840 143,999 0.31
500 48,421 0.11
17,160 91,494 0.20
2,800 97,945 0.21
18,100 262,848 0.58
6,795 118,917 0.26
3,300 489,860 1.08
2,200 92,464 0.20
9,300 78,174 0.17



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REHE (REEZX) (E)
As at 31 December 2024
RZZEZWNF+=AM—H

Securities name

BHER

Listed equities (continued)
EHRE (&)

China (Stock Connect) (continued)
REA CEER RER) (B)

YANTAI JEREH OILFIELD SERVICES GROUP CO LTD-A
E et iR A mRERERNBRAR —AR

YUNNAN BAIYAO GROUP CO LTD-A
EMAESEBRBERAR —AK

ZHEJIANG DAHUA TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A

I RERMBAD AR AR — AR

ZHEJIANG JINGSHENG MECHANICAL & ELECTRICAL CO LTD-A
T RBEERDARAR —AK

ZHEJIANG NHU CO LTD-A #TH# MK BR AR — A
ZHEJIANG SANHUA INTELLIGENT CONTROLS CO LTD-A
AT =TEE e BRI AR A A — ARk

ZHONGJI INNOLIGHT CO LTD-A

FERB AR D BRR A A — AR

Hong Kong
B

AAC TECHNOLOGIES HLDGS INC 2RI IR AR QA
AGRICULTURAL BANK OF CHINA LTD-H
FEEXRITRMHAERAR —HE

AIA GROUP LTD R HREIEER A A

AKESO INC A AR (FE) BRAF]

ALIBABA GROUP HLDG LTD FJEEEEEIERA R AT
ALIBABA HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY LTD
FlBEEEERMBERAT

ANTA SPORTS PRODUCTS LTD % #525 ARAR AR
ASMPT LTD

BANK OF CHINA LTD-H FESRITRHABR AT —HR

BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS CO LTD-H
RBIRITRD BR AT —HAR

BEIGENE LTD & & MAR A A

BILIBILI INC-CL Z M2 iEE 5 ER A A —Z48

BOC HONG KONG (HLDGS) LTD AiRES (3i%) AR A A
BOSIDENG INTL HLDGS LTD ¥ 71 & B A% B R A 5
BUDWEISER BREWING CO APAC LTD H o A¥ERRA R A A
CGN POWER CO LTD-H #BEZE M ABR AR —HE
CHINA CITIC BANK CORP LTD-H #F{ZR TN BER A A —HK

% of
net asset
value
Holdings Fair value {(8&E&E%E
BERE AFE BIE(%)

HKD

BT
2,100 82,340 0.18
2,500 158,868 0.35
2,900 49,184 0.11
1,700 57,484 0.13
2,300 53,563 0.12
2,300 57,317 0.13
1,240 162,343 0.36
1,500 56,250 0.12
120,600 534,258 1.17
24,733 1,392,468 3.06
2,320 140,824 0.31
41,367 3,408,641 7.49
16,918 56,168 0.12
3,254 253,324 0.56
1,280 95,872 0.21
320,579 1,272,699 2.80
87,261 557,598 1.23
3,713 405,460 0.89
5,405 767,510 1.69
9,257 230,962 0.51
24,133 93,636 0.21
10,525 78,832 0.17
47,982 136,749 0.30
37,999 204,055 0.45
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REHE (REEZX) (E)
As at 31 December 2024
RZZEZWF+=AM—AH

Securities name

BHER

Listed equities (continued)
EHRE (&)

Hong Kong (continued)
BB (&)

CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK CORP-H
PREERIBITROERAR —HE

CHINA FEIHE LTD FEREAR Q7

CHINA LIFE INSURANCE CO LTD-H
FEASRBEGERAR —HE

CHINA LONGYUAN POWER GROUP CORP LTD-H
BRENEERMAERAT —HE

CHINA MERCHANTS BANK CO LTD-H

AT BRAE —HER

CHINA MERCHANTS PORT HLDGS CO LTD
REREOERER AR

CHINA OVERSEAS LAND & INVESTMENT LTD
RELEINER BRA A

CHINA PACIFIC INSURANCE (GROUP) CO LTD-H
FEAFFRR (£E) BHERAF —HE

CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HLDGS) CO LTD
R EE (J2R%) AR AR]

CHINA RESOURCES GAS GROUP LTD MM RIEA AR A

CHINA RESOURCES LAND LTD #EHEB#ER A7
CHINA RESOURCES MIXC LIFESTYLE SERVICES LTD
EHEREEERAF

CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION INTL HLDGS LTD
PEEENFEBEERAA

CHINA TOWER CORP LTD-H FE#EZERMHBER A E —HK
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP LTD
AXEHREESBEGRAA

CITIC LTD FEFERN AR QA

CK ASSET HLDGS LTD RIIBX&£EER AR

CK INFRASTRUCTURE HLDGS LTD RIEAZEEER A A
COSCO SHIPPING HLDGS CO LTD-H
PRBEERERNAERAT —HREK

CSPC PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LTD

AESEBRAT

ESR GROUP LTD

GALAXY ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LTD #R/iR4&EEGRE A T

GUANGDONG INVESTMENT LTD B/ & ER AT
H WORLD GROUP LTD F{F&£EAR A A
HAIDILAO INTL HLDG LTD /&K #% B RIZEA A R A 7
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% of
net asset
value
Holdings Fair value {(8&E&E%E
BERE AFE BIE(%)

HKD

BT
370,873 2,403,257 5.28
17,740 96,683 0.21
9,116 133,823 0.29
8,263 53,214 0.12
10,886 435,440 0.96
6,000 83,040 0.18
6,219 77,116 0.17
4,877 122,900 0.27
12,604 318,251 0.70
2,957 90,928 0.20
7,113 160,398 0.35
2,706 78,203 0.17
12,000 147,120 0.32
318,946 357,220 0.79
19,979 134,459 0.30
44,539 410,203 0.90
1,699 54,197 0.12
3,958 228,575 0.50
15,500 198,400 0.44
38,533 184,188 0.40
9,119 108,881 0.24
6,092 201,036 0.44
14,810 99,374 0.22
4,684 121,784 0.27
2,969 47,206 0.10



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REHE (REEZX) (E)
As at 31 December 2024
RZZEZWNF+=AM—H

Securities name

BHER

Listed equities (continued)
EHRE (&)

Hong Kong (continued)
BB (&)

HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LTD [B[&thEH R Q7

HANG SENG BANK LTD B4 #R17AR AT

HANSOH PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO LTD HH&EEE AR A A
HENDERSON LAND DEVELOPMENT CO LTD EBEJKEMEARRE QA
HKT TRUST AND HKT LTD A EMETHEEEMAR LA
HONG KONG EXCHANGES & CLEARING LTD
EBRGREEMBR AR

INDUSTRIAL & COMMERCIAL BK OF CHINA LTD-H
RETEETRMDAERAR —HR

INNOVENT BIOLOGICS INC (B) 4 ¥Els: — B4R

JD HEALTH INTL INC RE#fRERHERA A

JD LOGISTICS INC REWARKML AR AR

IJD.COM INC RREBERHBR AR

KINGSOFT CORP LTD &L 4 AR A A

KUAISHOU TECHNOLOGY RF R

KUNLUN ENERGY CO LTD EméteRER AR

LI AUTO INC-CL A FB#8;58 —A%E

LI NING CO LTD ZEAR A7

MEITUAN-CLASS B %=[& —Bja

MINISO GROUP HOLDING LIMITED &EIEREEERER AT
MTR CORP LTD &F# AR AF

NETEASE INC BSRMH AR A A

NEW ORIENTAL EDUCATION & TECHNOLOGY GROUP INC
FRAIAHEREEEFRAA

NIO INC-CL A FiR&%EE — A%

NONGFU SPRING CO LTD-H ZXRIIFEBM AR AR —HAK
ORIENT OVERSEAS INTL LTD H 5840 (BF) AR QT
PING AN INSURANCE GROUP CO OF CHINA LTD-H

PR ZRE (RE) ROHBMRAF —HR

POP MART INTL GROUP LTD &35 B EE AR A A
POSTAL SAVINGS BANK OF CHINA CO LTD-H
PEERFEERITIROGER AR —HE

POWER ASSETS HLDGS LTD B X AR AT

SANDS CHINA LTD £X+ EAR A A

% of
net asset
value
Holdings Fair value {(8&E&E%E
BERE AFE BIE(%)

HKD

BT
7,000 43,610 0.10
1,226 117,143 0.26
3,640 62,899 0.14
4,457 105,185 0.23
21,553 206,909 0.45
3,638 1,072,482 2.36
279,420 1,455,778 3.20
4,506 164,920 0.36
2,945 82,755 0.18
10,142 129,818 0.29
12,630 1,717,680 3.78
7,146 240,463 0.53
27,686 1,144,816 2.52
21,094 177,190 0.39
3,525 331,174 0.73
12,056 198,442 0.44
14,060 2,132,902 4.69
3,410 160,441 0.35
7,035 190,649 0.42
4,322 598,165 1.31
3,103 151,892 0.33
15,560 541,488 1.19
13,577 460,939 1.01
469 53,982 0.12
16,660 767,193 1.69
1,400 125,510 0.28
12,699 58,161.00 0.13
3,867 209,591.00 0.46
5,564 116,288 0.26
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REHE (REEZX) (E)
As at 31 December 2024
RZZEZWF+=AM—AH

Securities name

BHER

Listed equities (continued)
EHRE (&)

Hong Kong (continued)
BB (&)

SHENZHOU INTL GROUP HLDGS LTD EE BB & Eix R AR A T

SINO BIOPHARMACEUTICAL LTD FREA Y REEAR A 7
SINO LAND CO LTD zMEBZE AR A7

SITC INTL HLDGS CO LTD #LEE iR AR A 7

SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LTD #iEEbEZE AR AT
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY GROUP CO LTD
HFHER (EE) BRAF

SWIRE PACIFIC LTD ‘A" KM AR RAEA’

SWIRE PROPERTIES LTD A&HEABRE A A

THE HONG KONG & CHINA GAS CO LTD &#&HEHTER AR

TONGCHENG TRAVEL HLDGS LTD R2KITIZREGRE A 7
TRIP.COM GROUP LTD #i2&=E AR A A

TSINGTAO BREWERY CO LTD-H EE&MAERM AR AT —HE
WEICHAI POWER CO LTD-H #4%&) Hix 3 BR AR —HA%
WHARF REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT CO LTD
NEREXEMEREFR AR

WUXI BIOLOGICS (CAYMAN) INC ZEERA ¥ E M AR A 7
XIAOMI CORP-CLASS B SHARE /K& B —BE D
XPENG INC /NMERBEHR AT

YUM CHINA HLDGS INC B¥H RZER AR AR )

ZTO EXPRESS CAYMAN INC FEBIRE (Fi2) AR AR

Collective investment schemes
SRR ETE

Hong Kong
e

LINK REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST “EEFHMEREEFTES
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% of
net asset
value
Holdings Fair value {(8&E&E%E
BERE AFE BIE(%)
HKD
BT
2,029 125,798 0.28
37,734 120,749 0.27
12,470 97,890 0.22
13,160 272,412 0.60
6,119 456,783.00 1.00
3,097 213,228.00 0.47
2,140 150,763 0.33
4,210 66,602.00 0.15
30,703 190,666 0.42
9,900 180,180 0.40
1,261 680,940 1.50
1,312 74,522 0.16
16,128 191,601 0.42
6,277 124,661.00 0.27
9,890 173,668.00 0.38
63,429 2,188,301 4.81
12,165 567,497.00 1.25
1,092 408,626.00 0.90
1,450 219,385 0.48
10,841 356,127 0.78




BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (UNAUDITED) (continued)
REHE (REEZX) (E)

As at 31 December 2024
RZZEZWNF+=AM—H

Securities name

EHER

Listed equities (continued)
EHRE (&)

Total investments R & #%8
Other net assets Efh&&E % E

Net assets value as at 31 December 2024
RZEBE-MF+ - AM—BENEEFE

Total investments, at cost &M% (LA A)

% of

net asset

value

Holdings Fair value {(8&E&E%E

BERE AFE BIE(%)
HKD
BT

45,333,662 99.65

160,774 0.35

45,494,436 100.00

45,535,105
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)
PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED)

REMASEEBR (REFR)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Securities name

HEAW

Listed equities
EHRE

China (Stock Connect)
FER (BAR,RER)

37 INTERACTIVE ENTERTAINMENT NETWORK
TECHNOLOGY GROUP CO LTD-A
T ERPERNBEEERNARAR —AR
AIER EYE HOSPITAL GROUP CO LTD-A
ERRNEREERNERAR —AR
ANHUI GUJING DISTILLERY CO LTD-A
ZREHFFBERNBR AR —AR
ASYMCHEM LABORATORIES TIANJIN CO LTD-A
SIRRBEEE (KE)BRHBERDA —AR
AVARY HLDG SHENZHEN CO LTD-A
P SEht ORI R BRAF — AR
BANK OF NINGBO CO LTD-A
HRRITIRODABRAR —AR
BEIJING ORIENTAL YUHONG WATERPROOF
TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A
ERRFRLGKBARNOBERAF — AR
BOE TECHNOLOGY GROUP CO LTD-A
REFREEERGAERAR —AR
CGN POWER CO LTD-A
HEEZENRNBRAR — AR
CHANGCHUN HIGH-TECH INDUSTRY (GROUP)
CO LTD-A
RERTREMEE (£E8)RHER AR —AR
CHAOZHOU THREE-CIRCLE GROUP CO LTD-A
BMN=IR (RE) R BRAF — ARl
CHINA GREATWALL TECHNOLOGY GROUP
CO LTD-A HEIRHBEEERNBER AR —AR
CHINA MERCHANTS EXPRESSWAY
NETWORK & TECHNOLOGY HLDGS CO LTD-A
BERARBEREERBRN AR AR —AR
CHINA MERCHANTS SHEKOU INDUSTRIAL
ZONE HOLDINGS CO LTD-A
BEROTXRIERBHER AR —AR
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Holdings

as at
01.01.2024
R-ZB-MEF
—A—H
ZERE

38,600

23,347

800

800

4,100

13,900

7,600

92,116

45,300

800

3,500

14,300

21,700

Additions
i

12,900

7,100

3,000

900

3,000

2,300

33,800

2,600

28,700

8,900

Bonus
AN\

Disposals
HE

(36,000)

(19,300)
(500)
(800)

(5,900)
(9,200)

(6,500)

(65,000)
(49,900)

(800)

(1,900)

(26,500)

(24,000)

Holdings

as at
31.12.2024
R-Z2-MF
+=AM-H
ZERE

15,500

11,147

300

1,200

5,600

4,100

29,416

29,200

1,600
2,600

16,500

6,600



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)
PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REMASEBH®R CREFR) (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Securities name

HEAW

Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)

China (Stock Connect) (continued)
FE R (BER,RER) (B)

CHINA RESOURCES SANJIU MEDICAL &
PHARMACEUTICAL CO LTD-A
EH=NBERHBBRAF —AR
CHINA VANKE CO LTD-A
BROERMHERAT —AR
CHONGQING ZHIFEI BIOLOGICAL PRODUCTS
CO LTD-A EEBRAEMERRNBERAF —AK
CNGR ADVANCED MATERIAL CO LTD-A
HEIMERODER AT — AR
CONTEMPORARY AMPEREX TECHNOLOGY
CO LTD-A EEERFTRE RO AR AR —AR
EAST MONEY INFORMATION CO LTD-A
RAMEEERHBRAT —AR
EOPTOLINK TECHNOLOGY INC LTD-A
PXERET 2 BB AR MTRH AR AR — AR
EVE ENERGY CO LTD-A
BMEREERNBRAT —AR
FOCUS MEDIA INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
CO LTD-A H REHEEERMERH AR LA —Alk
GANFENG LITHIUM GROUP CO LTD-A
IREREEEERNERAT —AR
GF SECURITIES CO LTD-A
BEIHRDER AT —AR
GOERTEK INC-A BB M AR AR —AR
GUANGZHOU SHIYUAN ELECTRONIC
TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A
EMEREFRERNDBERAF —AR
GUANGZHOU TINCI MATERIALS
TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A
BEMEXBaF M HROER AT —AR

Holdings
as at
01.01.2024

RZEZWEF
—B—H
ZERE

15,200

5,400

2,100

10,000

30,920

3,876

25,700

4,600

16,100

12,000

3,800

Additions
i

3,500

3,600

2,800

1,200

9,600

1,400

2,400

3,900

3,700

Bonus
AN\

570

Disposals
HE

(2,300)

(15,200)
(7,000)
(3,000)

(10,000)

(19,300)

(800)
(3,876)

(15,600)
(6,500)

(16,100)

(12,000)

(1,800)

(3,800)

Holdings

as at
31.12.2024
R-Z2-MF
+=AM-H
ZERE

1,770

2,000

2,740

1,200

21,220

600

12,500

2,000

1,900
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)
REHEESRBR (REER) (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Holdings Holdings
as at as at
01.01.2024 31.12.2024
R-E-WmE R-E-WmE
Securities name —A—H Additions Bonus Disposals T=AM—A
BHER ZERE g AN HE ZERE
Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)
China (Stock Connect) (continued)
FER CBER, FER) (B)
GUANGZHOU YUEXIU CAPITAL - 14,300 - (14,300) -
HLDGS GROUP CO LTD-A
BEMNBEEEREREERNHBRAR —AR
GUOSEN SECURITIES CO LTD-A 17,300 7,300 - (17,700) 6,900
BEBEHFRNBRAG —AR
HANGZHOU TIGERMED CONSULTING CO LTD-A 1,600 - - (1,600) -
MMEBEBERRE RN BRDF] —AR
HITHINK ROYALFLUSH INFORMATION 1,100 - - (700) 400
NETWORK CO LTD-A
T REIEREESRNABRAR —AR
HUADONG MEDICINE CO LTD-A 3,300 1,000 - (1,900) 2,400
ERBEROHARAT —AR
HUALI INDUSTRIAL GROUP CO LTD-A 2,000 1,400 - (2,800) 600
FILEFEXEBRNHERAR —AK
HUIZHOU DESAY SV AUTOMOTIVE CO LTD-A 1,100 1,200 - (1,300) 1,000
EMNTEEARNTEETRODBRAF —AK
INNER MONGOLIA DIAN TOU ENERGY - 6,500 - (3,900) 2,600
CORPORATION LTD-A
NEHBERERRNHERAF —AR
IEIT SYSTEMS CO LTD-A 5,300 4,100 - (5,600) 3,800
RHEFEEEERNBERAF —AR
IFLYTEK CO LTD-A 4,500 700 - (3,300) 1,900
BRI G BR AR — AR
IMEIK TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT CO LTD-A 600 400 240 (800) 440
BEERBMERROAER AR —AR
JIANGSU EASTERN SHENGHONG CO LTD-A 11,400 10,300 - (21,700) -
TERRFRIRNOER DA —AK
JIANGSU YANGHE BREWERY 4,100 - - (2,300) 1,800

JOINT-STOCK CO LTD-A
LEETEBRINARAR —AR
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REMASEBH®R CREFR) (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Holdings
as at
01.01.2024
R-E-WmE
Securities name —H—H Additions
BHER ZERE g
Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)
China (Stock Connect) (continued)
FE R (BER,RER) (B)
KUANG-CHI TECHNOLOGIES CO LTD-A - 1,800
KRR R AR — AR
KUNLUN TECH CO LTD-A - 1,000
EREBENERONARAR —AK
LB GROUP CO LTD-A EREEERNER LR —AK - 4,400
LINGYI ITECH GUANGDONG CO-A - 46,100
BERERDERNBRAR —AK
LUXSHARE PRECISION INDUSTRY CO LTD-A 12,500 23,400
MABEIERNODER DA —AR
LUZHOU LAOQOJIAO CO LTD-A 2,900 600
BEMEZEEROARAE —AR
MANGO EXCELLENT MEDIA CO LTD-A 31,543 10,600
TRBERNHAERAE —AR
MAXSCEND MICROELECTRONICS CO LTD-A 900 -
IHEBHMBETROBRAT —AR
MUYUAN FOODS CO LTD-A 9,000 4,200
HRERROHAERAE —AR
NAURA TECHNOLOGY GROUP CO LTD-A 1,000 500
EHEERBRERRNHBRDF — AR
PHARMARON BEIJING CO LTD-A 3,300 -
FERE(LA b)) B R MO BR AR — AR
PING AN BANK CO LTD-A 49,400 11,700
FRFITRODBR AR — AR
QINGHAI SALT LAKE INDUSTRY CO LTD-A 9,800 -
SHEPIERNDERDA —AR
RONGSHENG PETRO CHEMICAL CO LTD-A - 28,500
BBEALRMERAT —AR
S F HLDG CO LTD-A JEZ2#zRRH AR AR — AR 12,100 10,400
SATELLITE CHEMICAL CO LTD-A 6,200 600

HELBRHERLE —AR

Bonus
AN\

Disposals
HE

(4,400)
(29,200)

(26,200)

(2,200)

(30,600)

(900)

(9,300)

(700)

(3,300)

(38,000)

(6,200)

(15,600)

(12,200)
(3,900)

Holdings
as at

31.12.2024

RZEZMEF
+=AH#—H
ZERE

1,800

1,000

16,900

9,700

1,300

11,543

3,900

800

23,100

3,600

12,900

10,300
2,900

68



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)
PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REMASEBH®R CREFR) (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Securities name

HEAW

Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)

China (Stock Connect) (continued)
FE R (BER,RER) (B)

SG MICRO CORP-A
ERWEF QLR ROARLDF —AR
SHANGHAI RAAS BLOOD PRODUCTS CO LTD-A
EEFRTRERBRHBERAF —AK
SHANJIN INTERNATIONAL GOLD CO LTD-A
BB EERMHBRAR —AR
SHANXI MEIJIN ENERGY CO LTD-A
IWAAERERRNHBR AR —AR
SHENNAN CIRCUITS CO LTD-A
AEERRNHAERAD —AR
SHENWAN HONGYUAN GROUP CO LTD-A
RERREEROHARAT —AR
SHENZHEN INOVANCE TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A
RITENZMROERAT —AR
SHENZHEN MINDRAY BIO-MEDICAL
ELECTRONICS CO LTD-A
RN ERENBREESTRHABRAR —AR
SHENZHEN NEW INDUSTRIES BIOMEDICAL
ENGINEERING CO LTD-A
RINTHEZENEETEROERAR —AK
SIEYUAN ELECTRIC CO LTD-A
BRERARMDERAT —AR
SINOMINE RESOURCE GROUP CO LTD-A
HEEREERNBER AR —AR
SUNGROW POWER SUPPLY CO LTD-A
GrERROER AT —AR
SUZHOU MAXWELL TECHNOLOGIES CO LTD-A
BMNERRERN AR AR —AR
SUZHOU TFC OPTICAL COMMUNICATION
CO LTD-A #MKXERBERODERAT —AK
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Holdings

as at
01.01.2024
R-ZB-MEF
—A—H
ZERE

1,500

12,400

1,300

41,600

9,500

3,000

1,900

2,800

700

Additions
i

13,900

5,000

1,100

1,600

1,300

Bonus
AN\

Disposals
HE

(1,500)

(13,900)

(5,000)

(12,400)

(2,400)

(26,000)

(7,100)

(2,600)

(900)

(600)

(2,300)

(700)

(600)

Holdings

as at
31.12.2024
R-Z2-MF
+=AM-H
ZERE

15,600

4,000

1,700

1,000

700

1,400

1,840

500



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)
PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REMASEBH®R CREFR) (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Securities name

HEAW

Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)

China (Stock Connect) (continued)
FE R (BER,RER) (B)

TCL TECHNOLOGY GROUP CORP-A
TCLEHX BRI BR AR — AR
TCL ZHONGHUAN RENEWABLE ENERGY
TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A
TCLF A ERBE BRI AR A A —Allk
TIANQI LITHIUM CORP-A
ABEEXRBRNBRAFR —AR
TONGLING NONFERROUS METALS
GROUP CO LTD-A
EAeeBEEKNARAR AR
UNIGROUP GUOXIN MICROELECTRONICS
CO LTD-A ABEMEFBRHERAF —AR
UNISPLENDOUR CORP LTD-A
KABRDBRAF —AlR
WEICHAI POWER CO LTD-A
RN BRAT — AR
WENS FOODSTUFF GROUP CO LTD-A
BERMEERNARIF AR
WULIANGYE YIBIN CO LTD-A
HELRABRHBRAR —AR
WUS PRINTED CIRCUIT (KUNSHAN) CO LTD-A
BTETRMNARAFR —AR
XCMG CONSTRUCTION MACHINERY CO LTD-A
BRIKEIRERRNBRAF —AK
YANTAI JEREH OILFIELD SERVICES GROUP

CO LTD-A EatinhmREEERNERAF —AR

YUNNAN BAIYAO GROUP CO LTD-A
EHAEKERNERATR —AK

YUNNAN ENERGY NEW MATERIAL CO LTD-A
R RENM BRI ARAR —AR

ZHEJIANG DAHUA TECHNOLOGY CO LTD-A
AT AZR MBI AR AR — AR

Holdings

as at
01.01.2024
R-ZB-MEF
—A—H
ZERE

42,760

8,375

11,900

1,600

5,600

22,200

17,295

7,500

4,400

19,700

3,200
1,700

5,700

Additions
i

15,800

3,100

23,300

19,300

8,500

500

700

3,800
2,100

1,100

1,100

Bonus
AN\

Disposals
HE

(41,400)

(8,375)

(12,200)

(23,300)

(1,600)

(5,600)

(23,400)

(19,000)

(4,700)

(2,900)

(14,200)

(1,800)
(1,700)

(3,900)

Holdings

as at
31.12.2024
R-Z2-MF
+=AM-H
ZERE

17,160

2,800

18,100

6,795

3,300

2,200

9,300

2,100

2,500

2,900

70



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REMASEBH®R CREFR) (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Holdings
as at
01.01.2024
R-E-WmE
Securities name —H—H Additions
BHER ZERE g
Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)
China (Stock Connect) (continued)
FENH CEHBR RER) (B)
ZHEJIANG JINGSHENG MECHANICAL & 3,600 900
ELECTRICAL CO LTD-A
WL RERERNHABRLA —AR
ZHEJIANG NHU CO LTD-A 6,200 -
IR N AERRF —AR
ZHEJIANG SANHUA INTELLIGENT CONTROLS 11,800 2,300
CO LTD-A MNI =T B ez HliR i AR AR —Alk
ZHONGII INNOLIGHT CO LTD-A 3,100 700
FEBEIRD BR AR — AR
Hong Kong
5%
AAC TECHNOLOGIES HLDGS INC - 1,500
InERERERER DA
AGRICULTURAL BANK OF CHINA LTD-H 241,340 88,000
HEEERITRHARAF —HRK
AIA GROUP LTD R#rIgizERABR AR 72,873 2,400
AKESO INC EH AR (A=) BRAR - 5,000
ALIBABA GROUP HLDG LTD 88,567 9,100
MECBEEERERA A
ALIBABA HEALTH INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY LTD 33,148 6,000
B B R E SR AR A A
ANTA SPORTS PRODUCTS LTD 11,714 2,400
ZRBERARERAR
ASMPT LTD - 3,300

BANK OF CHINA LTD-H # BRI ER AR —HK 655,119 241,000
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Bonus
AN\

1,040

Disposals
HE

(2,800)

(3,900)
(11,800)

(3,600)

(208,740)
(50,540)
(2,680)
(56,300)
(22,230)
(10,860)

(2,020)
(575,540)

Holdings

as at
31.12.2024
R-B-MF
+=AM-H
ZERE

1,700

2,300
2,300

1,240

1,500
120,600
24,733
2,320
41,367
16,918

3,254

1,280
320,579



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)
PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REMASEBH®R CREFR) (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Securities name

HEAW

Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)

Hong Kong (continued)
Bt (&)

BANK OF COMMUNICATIONS CO LTD-H
RBIRITRAER AR —HRE

BEIGENE LTD

BE@MNERAR

BEIJING ENTERPRISES HLDGS LTD
ERERBER AR

BILIBILI INC-CL Z

BIEEERNER AR — 28

BOC HONG KONG (HLDGS) LTD
FERES (11R) BR AR
BOSIDENG INTL HLDGS LTD

A SRR AR AR

BUDWEISER BREWING CO APAC LTD
BRDARRER AR

CGN POWER CO LTD-H
FEEZENROAERAR —HE

CHINA CITIC BANK CORP LTD-H
FEHRITROBB AR —HR

CHINA CONSTRUCTION BANK CORP-H
PRZRRITROARAF —HR

CHINA FEIHE LTD FEREER LA
CHINA GAS HLDGS LTD #EARIZERER A A
CHINA LIFE INSURANCE CO LTD-H
FEASRBRBROERAR —HE

CHINA LONGYUAN POWER GROUP CORP LTD-H
ERENEEROABR AR —HE

CHINA MENGNIU DAIRY CO LTD
FRSFAEBRAR

Holdings
as at
01.01.2024

RZEZWEF
—B—H
ZERE

70,261
6,623
5,000
1,695

21,327
41,113
19,285
65,682
75,319
803,683
24,000
36,025
51,426

23,213

31,238

Additions

i

99,000

2,400

10,460
3,000
16,000
7,200
61,000
30,000
120,000
25,000
3,200

5,000

10,000

Bonus
AN\

Disposals
HE

(82,000)
(5,310)
(5,000)
(6,750)

(15,070)

(32,980)

(15,960)

(78,700)

(67,320)

(552,810)

(31,260)

(39,225)

(47,310)

(24,950)

(31,238)

Holdings

as at
31.12.2024
R-Z2-MF
+=AM-H
ZERE

87,261

3,713

5,405
9,257
24,133
10,525
47,982
37,999
370,873
17,740

9,116

8,263
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)
REHEESRBR (REER) (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Holdings Holdings
as at as at
01.01.2024 31.12.2024
R-E-WmE R-E-WmE
Securities name —A—H Additions Bonus Disposals T=AM—A
BHER ZERE g AN HE ZERE
Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)
Hong Kong (continued)
Bt (&)
CHINA MERCHANTS BANK CO LTD-H 27,626 7,000 - (23,740) 10,886
BERITROBRELR] —HEK
CHINA MERCHANTS PORT HLDGS CO LTD - 6,000 - - 6,000
BERAERZERERAT
CHINA OVERSEAS LAND & INVESTMENT LTD 24,659 6,000 - (24,440) 6,219
HENEINERBR AT
CHINA PACIFIC INSURANCE (GROUP) CO LTD-H 20,397 2,800 - (18,320) 4,877
HEIR T RRE (RE) RHBRAF —HAR
CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HLDGS) CO LTD 10,154 23,500 - (21,050) 12,604
EFHEE (FR) BRAF
CHINA RESOURCES GAS GROUP LTD 15,237 - - (12,280) 2,957
ERRRIERERAR
CHINA RESOURCES LAND LTD #ERBEMER A 24,533 5,000 - (22,420) 7,113
CHINA RESOURCES MIXC LIFESTYLE 6,216 1,600 - (5,110) 2,706
SERVICES LTD
EHBREFERAA
CHINA SHENHUA ENERGY CO LTD-H - 14,000 - (14,000) -
Bl E AR B IR AR —HIR
CHINA STATE CONSTRUCTION INTL HLDGS LTD 16,121 12,000 - (16,121) 12,000
HERZEREEEBRA A
CHINA TOWER CORP LTD-H 570,666 212,000 - (463,720) 318,946
HEIEERODBR AT —HR
CHOW TAI FOOK JEWELLERY GROUP LTD 25,119 19,200 - (24,340) 19,979
BAREHRESEBR AR
CITIC LTD #EHERHBRAF 59,699 35,000 - (50,160) 44,539
CITIC SECURITIES CO LTD-H 8,733 - - (8,733) -
FEIERRODBR AR —HR
CK ASSET HLDGS LTD RIIEZX£B AR AT 10,599 - - (8,900) 1,699
CK HUTCHISON HLDGS LTD RIMiEEER AR 13,698 8,500 - (22,198) -
CK INFRASTRUCTURE HLDGS LTD 4,768 4,000 - (4,810) 3,958
RIEREEARAA
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)
REHEESRBR (REER) (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Holdings Holdings
as at as at
01.01.2024 31.12.2024
R-E-WmE R-E-WmE
Securities name —A—H Additions Bonus Disposals T=AM—A
BHER ZERE g AN HE ZERE
Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)
Hong Kong (continued)
Bt (&)
COSCO SHIPPING HLDGS CO LTD-H - 15,500 - - 15,500
HERBEERRMHARADF —HEK
CSPC PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP LTD 81,773 48,000 - (91,240) 38,533
REEEERATA
ESR GROUP LTD 23,949 10,000 - (24,830) 9,119
GALAXY ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LTD 19,312 9,000 - (22,220) 6,092
RNIREEFEFR AR
GANFENG LITHIUM GROUP CO LTD-H 3,756 - - (3,756) -
IsES R S BRMBR AR —HR
GENSCRIPT BIOTECH CORP 8,803 4,000 - (12,803) -
T ENMR RO BR AR
GUANGDONG INVESTMENT LTD E/8%EBR AT - 40,000 - (25,190) 14,810
H WORLD GROUP LTD #EF%£EAR A A 7,964 2,600 - (5,880) 4,684
HAIDILAO INTL HLDG LTD BE&BEEFIEHRER A 13,289 - - (10,320) 2,969
HANG LUNG PROPERTIES LTD BE#MESR A 11,157 12,000 - (16,157) 7,000
HANG SENG BANK LTD [E4£R{THER AT 3,866 300 - (2,940) 1,226
HANSOH PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO LTD 8,000 4,000 - (8,360) 3,640
BREEEEERAAF
HENDERSON LAND DEVELOPMENT CO LTD 9,177 2,000 - (6,720) 4,457
BEIKEMEFR LA
HENGAN INTL GROUP CO LTD 4,279 - - (4,279) -
BZEEFEEFRARA]
HKT TRUST AND HKT LTD 21,353 21,000 - (20,800) 21,553
ERBAETHREAEMERAA
HONG KONG EXCHANGES & CLEARING LTD 8,118 900 - (5,380) 3,638

BEBRGNEEMARAR
INDUSTRIAL & COMMERCIAL BK OF CHINA LTD-H 569,040 224,000
RETHRITROBRAE —HK

(513,620) 279,420

INNOVENT BIOLOGICS INC (B) 54 Y& s —BSE 6,716 4,500 - (6,710) 4,506
JD HEALTH INTL INC REEREEHERAF 6,325 - - (3,380) 2,945
JD LOGISTICS INC mEWHERHDER AT 12,622 14,200 - (16,680) 10,142
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)
PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REMASEBH®R CREFR) (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Securities name

HEAW

Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)

Hong Kong (continued)
Bt (&)

JD.COM INC mEEERMHER AT

KINGDEE INTL SOFTWARE GROUP CO LTD

S HERRGERARAT

KINGSOFT CORP LTD £ ILE 4 AR AT

KUAISHOU TECHNOLOGY H®RF Rl

KUNLUN ENERGY CO LTD E®m&eRER AR

LENOVO GROUP LTD #/8&EER AT

LI AUTO INC-CL A 27855 —AM

LI NING CO LTD ZEHR QA

LONGFOR GROUP HLDGS LTD

ENEEERERAR

MEITUAN-CLASS B % —B}g

MINISO GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

ZEBERERERARAR

MTR CORP LTD &HEEEER LA

NETEASE INC B5BHER A A

NEW ORIENTAL EDUCATION & TECHNOLOGY
GROUP INC

MRAHERBREBRBRAT

NEW WORLD DEVELOPMENT CO LTD

Mt RERERAT

NIO INC-CL A Ef’REE — A%

NONGFU SPRING CO LTD-H

RRUFEROERAA —HRK

ORIENT OVERSEAS INTL LTD

R8N (BEIR) BRATR

PICC PROPERTY & CASUALTY CO LTD-H

HREARMERBROBRAR —HR

PING AN INSURANCE GROUP CO OF
CHINA LTD-H

HETFZRE (EE) R BRRF —HE
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Holdings

as at
01.01.2024
R-ZB-MEF
—A—H
ZERE

31,320
39,883

30,856
47,486
51,594
48,647
16,245
30,586
11,461

32,500

13,795

12,192

7,803

4,358

7,580
14,857

3,179

39,919

44,640

Additions
i

4,500
6,000

1,000
19,600
6,000
18,000
2,200
7,000

6,900
10,600
6,000
1,900
2,800

8,000

19,230
27,600

2,500

18,500

Bonus
AN\

Disposals
HE

(23,190)
(45,883)

(24,710)
(39,400)
(36,500)
(66,647)
(14,920)
(25,530)
(11,461)

(25,340)
(7,190)

(12,760)
(9,770)
(7,500)

(12,358)

(11,250)
(28,880)

(5,210)

(39,919)

(46,480)

Holdings

as at
31.12.2024
R-Z2-MF
+=AM-H
ZERE

12,630

7,146
27,686
21,094

3,525
12,056
14,060
3,410
7,035

4,322
3,103

15,560
13,577

469

16,660



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)
PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REMASEBH®R CREFR) (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

Securities name

HEAW

Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)

Hong Kong (continued)
Bt (&)

POP MART INTL GROUP LTD
R EREEEAR AT
POSTAL SAVINGS BANK OF CHINA

CO LTD-H
HEBBRERERTRN BB AT —HR
POWER ASSETS HLDGS LTD E&:EXAR A A
SANDS CHINA LTD €/ FBEER A A
SHENZHOU INTL GROUP HLDGS LTD
MBI R EIER AR A A
SINO BIOPHARMACEUTICAL LTD
BB B IR AT
SINO LAND CO LTD =MEBEXERAF
SITC INTL HLDGS CO LTD /#%HEER AR A A
SUN HUNG KAI PROPERTIES LTD
MREMEZERAR AR
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY GROUP CO LTD
RFHERE (EE) ARAA
SWIRE PACIFIC LTD ‘A’ KERHBRAF)A’
SWIRE PROPERTIES LTD A&MEHBR LA
THE HONG KONG & CHINA GAS CO LTD
BRREERERAA
TIANQI LITHIUM CORP-H
AEBEROBRAR —HER
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HLDG CORP
FAEERERAF
TONGCHENG TRAVEL HLDGS LTD
FRZHRITERBR AT
TOPSPORTS INTL HLDGS LTD
SEBER LR AR A A

Holdings
as at
01.01.2024

RZEZWEF
—B—H
ZERE

51,599

7,807
19,854

4,869
82,054
21,590
21,060
10,769

9,707

74,173

3,309

10,446

7,600

27,959

Additions
i

1,400
6,000
1,500
6,400
1,900

11,000
4,000
9,000
3,500
1,300
5,000
9,800
6,000
1,200

12,000

18,800

Bonus
AN\

Disposals
HE

(44,900)

(5,440)
(20,690)
(4,740)
(55,320)
(13,120)
(16,900)
(8,150)
(7,910)
(2,860)
(5,590)
(49,470)
(4,509)
(22,446)

(16,500)

(27,959)

Holdings

as at
31.12.2024
R-Z2-MF
+=AM-H
ZERE

1,400
12,699
3,867
5,564
2,029
37,734
12,470
13,160
6,119
3,097
2,140

4,210
30,703

9,900
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EER GERETF (HETEEBETFRINTES)

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENTS IN PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

REMASEBH®R CREFR) (A)

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE_ZT-NF+_AM—BILtEFEE

Securities name

HEAW

Listed equities (continued)
IHRE (&)

Hong Kong (continued)
Bt (&)

TRIP.COM GROUP LTD #REEAR AT
TSINGTAO BREWERY CO LTD-H
SERBRMERAT —HR

WEICHAI POWER CO LTD-H

B NBRMARDR —HE

WHARF REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT CO LTD

NEREXRMEREBRATA

WUXI APPTEC CO LTD-H
ERERESHERZRNERAR —HK
WUXI BIOLOGICS (CAYMAN) INC
EREMBIMERAR

WYNN MACAU LTD KHEFIAR A A

XIAOMI CORP-CLASS B SHARE /|KEE —BIERf
XINYI SOLAR HLDGS LTD &t aiEKRAR A A

XPENG INC /MBS 2EBR DA

YADEA GROUP HLDGS LTD & EZER AR A

YANKUANG ENERGY GROUP CO LTD-H
mRERERRNBRAF —HER

YUM CHINA HLDGS INC B+ EZERER A A

ZIJIN MINING GROUP CO LTD-H
REBMEEEBRNERAR —HE
ZTO EXPRESS CAYMAN INC
FRRE (FR2) BRAF]

Collective Investment Schemes
SRIEEE

Hong Kong
B

LINK REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
EREMEREERES

77

Holdings

as at

01.01.2024
R=ZB=-N%F

—HA—H
ZERE

3,581
4,172

20,228

12,197

3,120

41,590

160,389
33,956
14,105
10,066
10,141

2,012
67,279

19,901

Additions
i

50

18,000

4,000

4,500

Bonus
AN\

Disposals
HE

(2,370)
(2,860)

(22,100)
(9,920)
(3,120)

(39,200)
(16,400)
(140,360)
(33,956)
(12,940)
(22,066)

(17,941)

(1,920)
(73,279)

(13,560)

Holdings

as at
31.12.2024
R-Z2-MF
+=AM-H
ZERE

1,261
1,312

16,128

6,277

9,890

63,429

12,165

1,092

1,450

10,841



BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

FEEEBREERIGELETF (EAPEEEETFRIINTES)

PERFORMANCE TABLE (UNAUDITED)
BRERBER (REEK)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_NF+_AM—HBILLFE

1. NET ASSET VALUE - PUBLISHED
EEFE-COM

At the end of financial year/period
BETHABPLEZHEREE HHE

31 December 2024 —Z—ME+ = A#H—AH

31 December 2023 —E=-=#+= AM—H

2. HIGHEST ISSUE/LOWEST REDEMPTION PRICE PER UNIT
BEARSRITE RERCDE

Financial year/period ended
HETHAYL-HMEREE 8

31 December 2024 —Z_NFE+ - AM—H

31 December 2023 —ZE—-=F+_—AM—AH

Net

Net asset value

asset value per unit
BN

EERE EERE
HKD HKD

BT BT
45,722,773 9.1446
93,906,062 8.1657
Highest Lowest
issue redemption

unit price unit price
BENRS BENRE
BITE EEE

HKD HKD

AT BT

9.8791 7.0241
10.1636 7.8122
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EERGERETF (EATEEEBETFRINTES)

PERIODIC ASSESSMENT AND REPORTING ON HOW BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA
CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF ("SUB-FUND") HAS ATTAINED ITS ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ("ESG") FOCUS (UNAUDITED)

ﬁﬁﬁﬂFiﬁélﬁk/’%EﬁﬁEiETF ((FES ) MAMEHHRE HERE)

AHE R B E (REFX)

Introduction

This disclosure is prepared by BOCI-Prudential Asset
Management Limited, the manager of the Sub-Fund (the
“Manager”).

The Sub-Fund seeks to provide investment performance
(before fees and expenses) that tracks the performance
of the S&P BOCHK China Hong Kong Greater Bay Area
Net Zero 2050 Climate Transition Index (“Underlying
Index”) by primarily (not less than 70% of its NAV)
invests in eligible securities that are commensurate with
the Sub-Fund’s ESG focus, which include China-domiciled
and/or Hong Kong-domiciled companies listed on stock
exchanges in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area ("GBA”) (including A-Shares) that are within
the Underlying Index. The key investment theme of the
Sub-Fund is climate change. The Underlying Index’s
major ESG focus is the reduction of greenhouse gas
("GHG", expressed in CO, equivalents) emissions at the
index level.

Actual proportion of underlying investments that
are commensurate with the Sub-Fund’s ESG focus/
elimination based on ESG-related screening/
comparison of designated benchmark (if applicable)

The Manager primarily adopts a full replication strategy
through investing all or substantially all in constituent
securities of the Underlying Index (the “Index
Securities”), broadly in proportion to the respective
weightings of the Index Securities. As of the last trading
day of the financial year ended 2024 (i.e. 31 December
2024), around 99.15% (2023: 99.21%) of the Sub-
Fund’s Net Asset Value was invested in securities that are
commensurate with the Sub-Fund’s ESG focus (i.e. Index
Securities).
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

HIREBAEEREEREETF(&

RPRBFBETFRIINTFES)

PERIODIC ASSESSMENT AND REPORTING ON HOW BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA
CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF ("SUB-FUND") HAS ATTAINED ITS ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE ("ESG") FOCUS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

ﬁﬁﬁﬂFiﬁélﬁk/’%EﬁﬁEiETF ((FES ) MAMEHHRE HERE)

AHE R | E (REFX) ()

Actual proportion of underlying investments that
are commensurate with the Sub-Fund’s ESG focus/
elimination based on ESG-related screening/
comparison of designated benchmark (if applicable)
(continued)

It should be noted that the index methodology of the
Underlying Index ("Index Methodology”) is determined
by the Index Provider! and reliance would be reasonably
placed on the index provider for developing the Index
Methodology with an aim to achieve an ESG focus on the
index level. For example, one of the Underlying Index’s
ESG focus is to consider the extent of reduction of GHG
emissions at the Underlying Index level as compared to
S&P China-Hong Kong Greater Bay Area Index (“Parent
Index”). The Underlying Index is designed to measure
the performance of eligible equity securities in GBA and is
based on the Parent Index.

In constructing the Underlying Index, it was noted that
the Underlying Index seeks to, at each rebalancing
reference date, achieve the following: (i) reduce the
overall GHG emissions intensity of the Underlying Index
as compared with the Parent Index by at least 30%;
and (ii) maintain a self-decarbonization rate of GHG
emissions intensity at a target level of at least 7%
reduction on average per annum. Against the background
of the aforesaid ESG criteria, it was noted that as of the
last trading day of the financial year ended 2024 (i.e.
31 December 2024), around 49% (2023: 44%) of the
securities in the Parent Index was eliminated as a result
of the ESG-based exclusionary criteria and inclusion
criteria (through the use of optimization with multiple
constraints) referred in the Index Methodology.

Given the Manager adopts a full replication strategy, the
comparison of designated benchmark for comparison of
the Sub-Fund’s ESG focus other than those mentioned
above, is not strictly applicable in this case.

1 S&P Dow Jones Indices LLC or its affiliates (the “Index Provider”)
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF
(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

PR B EERGERETF (EATEEEBETFRINTES)

PERIODIC ASSESSMENT AND REPORTING ON HOW BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA
CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF ("SUB-FUND") HAS ATTAINED ITS ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”) FOCUS (UNAUDITED) (continued)
EHEPREEBREERFERETF(FES ) MAERHEE #HERER ((ESG)) £EHNEH
R HE (REEXR) (&)

Actions taken by the Sub-Fund in attaining the Sub-
Fund’'s ESG focus (e.g. shareholder engagement
activities, proxy voting records of the ESG fund with
respect to its investee companies, etc.)

As mentioned above, the key investment theme of
the Sub-Fund is climate change and the Underlying
Index’s major ESG focus is the reduction of GHG
emissions at the index level.

In assessing how the Sub-Fund attained its ESG
focus, the Manager gathered information from the
index provider and various sources, and also applied
other tools, such as monitoring the deviation of
the stock weighting of the Sub-Fund’s investment
portfolio as compared to the Underlying Index.

The Manager has engaged an independent third-
party proxy voting advisory firm to provide advice
on voting related services, voting recommendations
and execution services for the Sub-Fund. The
Manager has opted for the use of “Sustainability
Policy”? developed by the proxy voting advisory firm,
which is oriented from United Nations Principles for
Responsible Investment, as the basis of the voting
decisions. During the year ended 31 December
2024, 100% of the proxy votes were casted in
accordance with the proxy voting guideline adopted
by the Manager.

2 Sustainability Policy seeks to promote support for recognized

global governing bodies promoting sustainable business practices
advocating for stewardship of environment, fair labor practices,
non-discrimination, and the protection of human rights.
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

HIREBAEEREEREETF(&

RPRBFBETFRIINTFES)

DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO CARBON FOOTPRINTS (UNAUDITED)

BREAESMETNIEE (REEZ)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HE_ZT-NF+_AM—BILtEFEE

Financed Carbon Emissions
tons CO,e/$M invested
(Scope 1+2 Greenhouse
Gas ("GHG"”) Emissions)

b 5 B B RO DAME B Y
Name of the Sub-Fund —EmEE BEERREE Data Coverage %
FESER (BE1+2AZEREHR) BEBEEX%
BOCHK Greater Bay Area Climate Transition ETF
RIREB XN EERIRBEETF 30.1 98.9%
Note FaE

1. The above data is from MSCI ESG Carbon Footprint
Calculator ("MSCI”) as of 14 January 2025, based
on the holdings of the Sub-Fund as of 31 December
2024.

2. Based on the information provided by MSCI, if a
company does not report its Scope 1 or 2 carbon
emissions data, MSCI may estimate it using their
proprietary Scope 1 or 2 carbon emissions estimation
model, where applicable.

3. As defined below, the calculation of Financed Carbon
Emissions only covers investment in shares and
corporate bonds and excludes other types of assets
including sovereign debts, cash and deposits with
banks.

Definition & Methodology

Financed Carbon Emissions: It measures the proportionate
carbon emissions, for which an investor is responsible
per USD million invested, by their total overall financing
where emissions are apportioned across all outstanding
shares and bonds of the investee company (i.e. %
Enterprise Value including cash).

Enterprise Value including cash (EVIC): The enterprise
value including cash (EVIC) is defined as the sum of
market capitalization of common stock and preferred
equity, and the book values of total debt and minority
interest, at fiscal year-end. EVIC is used as an allocation
base in the above portfolio footprint calculation.
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PR B EERGERETF (EATEEEBETFRINTES)

DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO CARBON FOOTPRINTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

BREHASTRETRNIEE (REER) (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HE_ZT-NF+_AM—BILtEFEE

Data Coverage: It is percentage of the Sub-Fund’s
holdings for which the MSCI data is available or
applicable. Companies outside of the MSCI’'s coverage
are excluded from the analysis while the weights of
the remaining companies are rebalanced such that the
“covered” portfolio weight equals 100%.

Scope 1 GHG Emissions: Direct GHG emissions from
sources owned or controlled by the company.

Scope 2 GHG Emissions: Indirect GHG emissions from

consumption of purchased electricity, heat, or steam of
the company.
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BOCHK GREATER BAY AREA CLIMATE TRANSITION ETF

(A SUB-FUND OF BOCHK ETF SERIES)

FEEEBREERIGELETF (EAPEEEETFRIINTES)

DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO CARBON FOOTPRINTS (UNAUDITED) (continued)

BREHASTRETRNIEE (REER) (E)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HE_ZT-NF+_AM—BILtEFEE

Disclaimer

The information contained herein is based on sources believed to be
reliable and has not been independently verified by BOCI-Prudential
Asset Management Limited. BOC-Prudential Asset Management
Limited makes no representation, warranty or undertaking, whether
express or implied, in relation to the information contained herein,
and will not be responsible for damages arising out of any person’s
reliance upon such information. Information contained herein reflect
the data as of the year ended 31 December 2024 and are subject to
change without notice.

Certain information contained herein (the “Information”) is sourced
from/copyright of MSCI Inc., MSCI ESG Research LLC, or their
affiliates (“"MSCI”), or information providers (together the “MSCI
Parties”) and may have been used to calculate scores, signals, or
other indicators. The Information is for internal use only and may
not be reproduced or disseminated in whole or part without prior
written permission. The Information may not be used for, nor does it
constitute, an offer to buy or sell, or a promotion or recommendation
of, any security, financial instrument or product, trading strategy,
or index, nor should it be taken as an indication or guarantee of any
future performance. Some funds may be based on or linked to MSCI
indexes, and MSCI may be compensated based on the fund’s assets
under management or other measures. MSCI has established an
information barrier between index research and certain Information.
None of the Information in and of itself can be used to determine
which securities to buy or sell or when to buy or sell them. The
Information is provided “as is” and the user assumes the entire risk
of any use it may make or permit to be made of the Information.
No MSCI Party warrants or guarantees the originality, accuracy and/
or completeness of the Information and each expressly disclaims all
express or implied warranties. No MSCI Party shall have any liability
for any errors or omissions in connection with any Information
herein, or any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive,
consequential or any other damages (including lost profits) even if
notified of the possibility of such damages.
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Any opinion contained in this Annual Report represents the Manager’s view as at the date of this report and
is given in good faith but is subject to change without notice. The information contained in this Annual Report
does not constitute recommendation nor is it intended to provide any investment advice. Investors should
refer to the Prospectus of the relevant sub-fund for further details (including risk factors, fees and charges
and other fund information). The Prospectus of the relevant sub-fund is available for viewing on the website
of the Manager at www.boci-pru.com.hk. Information contained in the Manager’s website has not been
reviewed by the SFC.
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